China Sunshine Paper Holdings Company Limited

TEHEAREZERERAF"

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Stock Code: 2002




Contents

Main Products

Corporate Information

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis

Corporate Governance Report

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Report of the Audit Committee

Directors and Senior Management

Report of the Directors

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Summary

20
30
57
59
63
77
83

84
86
87
89
184



Main Products

White top linerboard is used to provide the outer
facing surface of the corrugating medium. It is a
combination of linerboard and fluted inner sheet
of corrugating medium, which gives the board its
rigid structure and stacking strength. White top
linerboard is typically used as packaging material
for boxes, which require high quality printability
and stacking strength.



Coated white top linerboard is a form of white
top linerboard comprising a multiple-ply sheet
made of a bleached upper ply layer coated
writer a coating medium. Such coating allows
superior printability by offering better brightness
and gloss, and at the same time, delivers
excellent ink transfer quality. The coating layer of
the coated white top linerboard is much thinner
than that of the traditional coated duplex board,
and thus, it is considered more environmentally

friendly.

Core board is the main material used to
produce “cores” which are tubes generally
used as the base around which various
products, such as paper and yarn, are
wound. It is predominantly used to produce
durable spindles with the ability to withstand
high spinning speeds, and to produce strong
paper cores and related products.
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of China Sunshine Paper Holdings Company
Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual report
of our Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (“FY2022”).
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Chairman’s Statement

BUSINESS REVIEW:

In 2022, China’s economy experienced tremendous downward pressure due to multiple unexpected factors at
home and abroad, such as the resurgence of the Covid-19 pandemic and the impact of global geopolitical
conflicts. The paper industry was under dual pressure from both upstream and downstream. Specifically, the
supply chain disruption caused by the pandemic led to a significant increase in the prices of primary raw and
auxiliary materials and energy; and insufficient demand from downstream consumers led to an impediment to
price transmission to end users. According to the National Bureau of Statistics, in 2022, the producer price
index (PPI) of the paper and paper products industry increased by 0.6% year-on-year while the purchase price
of industrial producers for the wood and pulp category increased by 4.5% year-on-year, resulting in a
significant squeezing of the profit margins of enterprises in the industry and marking the industry’s entry into
the bottoming-out period.

In the face of a complex and severe economic situation throughout the year, the Group firmly believed that
there are opportunities in times of crisis, just as there will be a “warm spring with blooming flowers” ahead
after the “cold winter”. With the unremitting efforts of all its cadres and employees under the leadership of its
management, the Group adhered to the strategic policy of focusing on business operations and internal
management, actively responded to the situation and continued to make innovations, successfully maintaining
the steady operation of its existing business. Meanwhile, the Group continued to make breakthroughs in the
research and development and application of new products and technologies this year. Thanks to a series of
measures taken by the Group, the Group has consistently maintained competitive advantages amidst the new
industrial conditions and fierce market competition, steadily improved its position in the industry, and achieved
hard-won operating results.
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Chairman’s Statement

The Group has been committed to enhancing its competitiveness in various aspects such as procurement,
production, finance, sales and logistics. In response to the intensified market competition amidst the Covid-19
pandemic, the Group focused on leveraging its core customer resources to enhance its competitiveness in
regional markets. The Group has expanded its market share and optimized its customer structure by taking
specific measures such as re-analyzing the characteristics of regional markets, continuously strengthening its
relationships with core customers, and developing targeted featured products. In the meantime, the Group
continued to improve its manufacturing processes, optimize its financial structure, improve its logistics
efficiency and optimize its supplier structure. These series of measures to reduce costs and increase efficiency
have been unanimously recognised by customers, and have further enhanced the Company’s profitability
through refined management.

During the reporting period, the Group attached great importance to ecological environmental protection,
actively fulfilled its social responsibilities, and continuously improved its governance level. By consistently
adhering to its ESG principles, the Group has achieved high-quality development and won numerous
accolades. In March 2023, the Group was officially included in the list of Leader in Water Efficiency among
Key Water Consumption Enterprises and Industrial Parks in 2022 (20225 EZ /KM% - B R /KA R E L
) by the MIIT and other three ministries, with its various water efficiency indicators being at the top level
among selected enterprises in the paper industry. The Group is also the first enterprise in Weifang to receive
this honor. In terms of the established high-end packaging paper projects and the research and development
of new products, the Group has always focused on core indicators such as resource utilization efficiency and
recycling rate in order to minimize its environmental pollution. Meanwhile, the Group enhanced its corporate
governance level by continuously improving its various rules and regulations on environmental protection and
risk control mechanism during the reporting period.

In 2022, despite the numerous adverse factors such as the impact of the pandemic and weak downstream
demand, the Group reported 1,950,000 tonnes of machine-made paper, representing an increase of 28% as
compared to 1,520,000 tonnes for the corresponding period last year. The revenue increased to RMB9,538
million, representing an increase of 19.5% as compared to that for the corresponding period last year. These
marked that the Group has achieved the production targets for sales volume and revenue set at the beginning
of the year. Upholding the philosophy of “scientific, refined and efficient management” in internal management,
the Company has demonstrated remarkable management capabilities amidst adverse production conditions
and complex market environment. This can be evidenced by the fact that its “administrative expenses, selling
expenses, and finance costs” accounted for 10.5% of its revenue, down by 1.9 percentage points from 12.4%
for the corresponding period last year, and its inventory turnover rate was 8.4 times, up by 0.9 from 7.5 times
for the corresponding period last year.
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Chairman’s Statement

BUSINESS OUTLOOK:

Although the risk of global economic recession and the impact of geopolitical conflicts will continue to exist in
2023, the Group believes that an orderly recovery will be the main theme this year and the industry is
expected to enter a phase of sustained growth. Currently, the paper industry is witnessing the easing of the
upward trend or a decrease in the prices of various raw materials, auxiliary materials and energy. This,
coupled with smoother price transmission due to a gradual recovery of the demand from end-users driven by
China’s full opening and policy stimulus, is likely to contribute to a recovery in the profits of papermaking
enterprises. In the new year, the Group will seize the opportunity of market recovery to steadily increase the
market share of its existing main products. Meanwhile, the Group will also focus on promoting specialty
papers and bio-mechanical pulp, and continuously optimize its product mix, in an effort to enhance the
profitability of the Company. In addition, the Company will continue to optimize its production processes by
continuously enhancing its digital and intelligent level, thus comprehensively improving the management level of
the Group.

The Group focuses on producing high-quality and multi-purposed packaging paper, including white top
linerboard, coated-white top linerboard, core board and corrugated paper. It is also committed to satisfying
the need of different customers by intensively cultivating the market under the differentiated development
strategy at the same time. On the one hand, with the growing concentration in the industry due to the rising
operating threshold of the paper industry, the Group’s core product, coated-white top linerboard, is expected
to further increase its market share for its advantage of large-scale production and outstanding product
performance. On the other hand, with the recovery of market demand, the Group will continue to promote and
sell corrugated paper in the market and unleash the production capacity of its corrugated paper project (phase
I) to enhance its influence in regional and national markets. With a gradual boom in the industry, the Group is
confident that it can continuously enhance its overall strength and industry position by leveraging its technical,
product, brand, management and innovation advantages, thus achieving performance growth.

As an innovation-driven production enterprise led by a scientific research team, the Group continues to
intensify its efforts in independent innovation and improvement of its research and development system. The
Group has built a solid technological foundation for and accumulated practical experiences of innovating
product development, production process and information systems. Following its continuing efforts and
investments, the bio-mechanical pulp project (Phase I), of which the Group is in possession of all technology
patents, has been put into operation and begins to expand production output.

Wang Dongxing
Chairman

Hong Kong, China
30 March 2023
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Management
Discussion and Analysis

TOTAL REVENUE

Our Group’s total revenue for FY2022 was approximately RMB9,538.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB1,556.0 million or 19.5% as compared to that of approximately RMB7,982.2 million for
FY2021. The increase in revenue mainly resulted from the growth in sales quantity.

Sales of electricity and steam continued to account for a low single digit percentage of our Group’s total
revenue for FY2022.

The following table sets forth our Group’s total revenue by different business segments:

FY2022 FY2021

RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
Sales of paper products
White top linerboard 1,954,014 20.5 1,790,888 22.4
Coated-white top linerboard 2,368,916 24.8 2,440,506 30.6
Core board 775,556 8.1 791,650 9.9
Corrugated paper 1,959,929 20.6 1,094,739 18.7
Specialised paper products 2,074,914 21.8 1,566,763 19.7
Sub-total of paper products 9,133,329 95.8 7,684,546 96.3
Sales of electricity and steam 404,900 4.2 297,685 3.7

9,538,229 100.0 7,982,231 100.0

14 China Sunshine Paper Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2022



Management
Discussion and Analysis

COST OF SALES

Our cost of sales was around RMB8,374.1 million for FY2022, whereas the cost of sales for FY2021 was
approximately RMB6,448.5 million. The increase in cost of sales was consistent with the increase in revenue,
but higher than the increase in revenue. The significant increase in costs is mainly due to the increase in the
cost of raw materials such as waste paper, wood pulp, coal, etc, leading to the decrease in the Group’s
gross profit and gross profit margin.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Our gross profit decreased from approximately RMB1,533.7 million for FY2021 to approximately RMB1,164.1
million for FY2022. Gross profit margin for FY2022 was around 12.2%, representing a 7.0 percentage point
decrease as compared to that of 19.2% for FY2021.

OTHER PROFIT AND LOSS ITEMS

Other income of approximately RMB318.0 million for FY2022 (FY2021: approximately RMB299.0 million) mainly
comprised interest income of approximately RMB57.4 million (FY2021: approximately RMB47.5 million), rental
income from an investment property and other properties of approximately RMB3.2 million (FY2021:
approximately RMB3.4 million), government grants of approximately RMB246.0 million (FY2021: approximately
RMB232.2 million), hotel and catering services income of approximately RMB3.1 million (FY2021: approximately
RMB4.0 million) and logistics services income of approximately RMB8.3 million (FY2021: approximately
RMB11.9 million).

Other gains of approximately RMB3.5 million for FY2022 (FY2021: other losses of approximately RMB66.1
million) mainly consisted of gain from sale of scrap materials of RMB7.1 million, loss on disposal and written
off of property, plant and equipment of RMB12.4 million, net foreign exchange losses of RMB2.4 million, gain
on change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss of RMB241.2 million, impairment
loss of investment in an associate of RMB245.8 million and other profit of RMB15.8 million.

Annual Report 2022 China Sunshine Paper Holdings Company Limited
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Management
Discussion and Analysis

Distribution and selling expenses recorded RMB401.8 million for FY2022 as compared to RMB339.6 million for
the corresponding period last year. For FY2022, such expenses represented approximately 4.2% of the total
revenue, as compared with approximately 4.3% of the total revenue for FY2021.

Administrative expenses recorded RMB429.5 million for FY2022 as compared to RMB499.4 million for the
corresponding period last year. For FY2022, it accounted for approximately 4.5% of the total revenue, as
compared with approximately 6.3% of the total revenue for FY2021.

Finance costs recorded approximately RMB169.3 million for FY2022 as compared to approximately RMB149.2
million for the corresponding period last year. For FY2022, it accounted for approximately 1.8% of the total
revenue, as compared with approximately 1.9% of the total revenue for FY2021.

During 2022, there was a share of loss of a joint venture, Sunshine Oji (Shouguang) Specialty Paper Co., Ltd,
of RMB44.1 million (FY2021: share of loss of a joint venture of RMB8.7 million) and a share of loss on an
associate of RMB55.0 million.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Income tax expenses were approximately RMB124.3 million for FY2022 as compared to approximately
RMB198.8 million for FY2021.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

As a result of the above factors, we recorded a profit for the year attributable to the owners of our Company
of approximately RMB205.7 million for FY2022, representing an decrease of approximately RMB350.9 million
from approximately RMB556.6 million for FY2021.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Treasury policy

Our working capital requirement and capital expenditure are financed by a combination of cash generated from
our operations and bank and other borrowings. It is our Group’s treasury management policy not to engage in
any highly leveraged or speculative derivative products. During FY2022, our Group continued to adopt a
conservative approach to financial risk management.

Foreign exchange risks

As the functional and reporting currencies of our Group are Renminbi, there are significant foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of financial statements by individual companies. In addition, as our
Group conducts business transactions which are principally denominated in Renminbi, the exchange rate risk
at our Group’s operational level is not significant. Nevertheless, the management continues to monitor the
foreign exchange exposure and is prepared to take prudent measures such as hedging when needed.

Working capital

Net current liabilities of our Group were approximately RMB1,237.4 million as at 31 December 2022, as
compared to approximately RMB1,730.8 million as at 31 December 2021. Current ratio was 0.79 times and
0.71 times, respectively, as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

Bank balances and cash, and restricted bank deposits were approximately RMB2,436.3 million as at
31 December 2022, as compared to approximately RMB2,123.1 million as at 31 December 2021.

Inventories were approximately RMB900.7 million as at 31 December 2022, as compared to approximately

RMB1,088.2 million as at 31 December 2021. Inventory turnover was 43 days for FY2022, as compared to 49
days for FY2021.
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Trade receivables were approximately RMB630.7 million as at 31 December 2022, as compared to
approximately RMB527.7 million as at 31 December 2021. Trade receivables turnover for FY2022 was 22 days
as compared to 24 days for FY2021.

Trade payables were approximately BRMB1,108.0 million as at 31 December 2022, as compared to
approximately RMB1,031.3 million as at 31 December 2021. Trade payables turnover for FY2022 was 47 days,
as compared to 52 days for FY2021.

Cashflow
Net cash from operating activities amounted to approximately RMB546.4 million for FY2022 (FY2021:
approximately RMB1,067.0 million).

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to approximately RMB1,132.6 million for FY2022 (FY2021:
approximately RMB1,386.8 million), primarily representing the purchase of property, plant and equipment
RMB337.2 million, and additions of deposits for acquisition of property, plant and equipment of RMB321.0
million, etc.

Net cash from financing activities amounted to approximately RMB607.5 million for FY2022 (FY2021:
approximately RMB536.0 million), primarily attributable to interest paid of RMB203.0 million, the repayment of
bank and other borrowings of RMB3,406.4 million, net proceeds from sale and leaseback transactions of
RMB552.3 million and new bank borrowings raised of RMB3,337.1 million, and increase in discounted bills
financing of RMB365.6 million etc.

The combined effect of the above resulted in a net increase in cash and cash equivalents of RMB21.3 million
for FY2022 (FY2021: Net increase in cash and cash equivalents of RMB216.3 million).

Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total borrowings was RMB3,823.7 million, an increase of RMB492.3
million from RMB3,331.4 million as at 31 December 2021. The table below sets forth the balances of short
and long-term borrowing obligations within the Group as at the date indicated:

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

Current bank loans 2,047,827 2,213,223
Non-current bank loans 930,673 536,901
Current other borrowings 350,134 248,566
Non-current other borrowings 453,318 300,387
Current lease liabilities 3,214 1,354
Non-current lease liabilities 38,491 31,000
3,823,657 3,331,431

Analysis of borrowings by currency:

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

Denominated in RMB 3,737,387 3,331,431
Denominated in EUR 86,270 =
3,823,657 3,331,431
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Discussion and Analysis

The Directors consider that there are good track records and good relationships with banks, and that the
Group will be able to renew existing bank facilities upon expiry or to obtain other additional borrowing facilities
as necessary.

Gearing ratio

Our net gearing ratio increased from approximately 29.6% as at 31 December 2021 to approximately 31.4%
as at 31 December 2022. The increase in net gearing ratio was mainly driven by the increase in capital and
reserves.

Capital expenditure
During FY2022, our capital expenditure was approximately RMB337.2 million (FY2021: RMB698.2 million),
which mainly involved the purchase of property, plant and equipment.

Pledge of assets

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s assets were pledged to secure banking facilities
(including bank borrowings, discounted bills financing and bills payables) granted to the Group. The aggregate
carrying amount of the assets of the Group pledged at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

Buildings 611,995 691,127
Plant, machinery and equipment 1,222,704 302,115
Prepaid lease payments 413,229 284,222
Restricted bank deposits 1,585,112 1,293,544
3,833,040 2,571,008

Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

Capital expenditure contracted for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of acquisition of
property, plant and equipment, investment in a partnership and investment cost in an associate were
approximately RMB3.7 million, RMB196.3 million and nil as at 31 December 2022 (FY2021: RMB82.2 million,
RMB196.3 million and RMB250 million).

As at 31 December 2022, our Group had no material contingent liabilities.

Employees and remuneration policies

Our Group employed approximately 4,200 full-time employees in the PRC and Hong Kong as at 31 December
2022. The staff costs for FY2022 were approximately RMB442.3 million. The emolument policy of our Group is
aimed at attracting, retaining and motivating talented individuals. The principle is to have performance-based
remuneration which reflects market standards. Remuneration package for each employee is generally
determined based on his or her job nature and position with reference to market standards. Employees also
receive certain welfare benefits. Our emolument policy will be adjusted depending on a number of factors,
including changes to the market practice and stages of our business development, so as to achieve our
operational targets.

Notes to financial ratios:

(1) Inventory turnover days equal to the average of the opening and closing balances of inventories of the relevant year divided by cost of

sales of the relevant year and multiplied by 365 days.
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) Trade receivables turnover days equal to the average of the opening and closing balances of trade receivables of the relevant year

divided by turnover of the relevant year and multiplied by 365 days.

3) Trade payables turnover days equal to the average of the opening and closing balances of trade payables of the relevant year divided

by cost of sales of the relevant year and multiplied by 365 days.
4) Current ratio equals current assets divided by current liabilities as of the end of the year.

5) Net gearing ratio equals total of bank borrowings, other borrowings and leases liabilities, net of bank balances and cash, and restricted

bank deposits divided by total equity as of the end of the year.

Profit guarantee

Reference is made to the disclosable transaction announcement of the Company dated 10 November 2021 in
relation to the acquisition of 45% shareholding interest in Top Speed Energy Holding Ltd. and the issue of the
Consideration Shares under the General Mandate (the “Announcement”), the supplemental announcement of
the Company dated 4 January 2022 (the “Supplemental Announcement”), and the announcement of the
Company dated 21 January 2022 in relation to the completion of acquisition of 45% shareholding interest in
Top Speed Energy Holding Ltd. Unless defined otherwise, the words used herein shall have the same
meanings as those defined in the Announcement and the Supplemental Announcement.

According to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Vendors and the Vendors’ Guarantors irrevocably and
unconditionally guarantee jointly and severally to the Purchaser that (a) the 2022 Net Profit shall not be less
than RMB30,000,000 (the “2022 Guaranteed Profit”); (b) the 2023 Net Profit shall not be less than
RMB45,000,000 (the ©“2023 Guaranteed Profit”); and (c) the 2024 Net Profit shall not be less than
RMB54,000,000 (the “2024 Guaranteed Profit” together with the 2022 Guaranteed Profit and 2023 Guaranteed
Profit, each the “Guaranteed Profit” and collectively the “Guaranteed Profits”).

If the Net Profit in the relevant guarantee period is less than or equal to 70% of the Guaranteed Profit in the
corresponding guarantee period, the Vendors and Vendors’ Guarantors shall jointly and severally within thirty
Business Days from the date on which the relevant Audited Accounts are delivered to the Purchaser
repurchase or procure its affiliates to repurchase all the shares of the Target Company which are owned by
the Purchaser on such date at the consideration of RMB265,000,000, RMB280,900,000 and RMB297,754,000
for the relevant guarantee period, respectively.

The Company has received the unaudited financial statements of the Target Group as at 31 December 2022.
Based on the above unaudited financial statements, the Target Group recorded a book loss, which will not
meet 70% of the 2022 Guaranteed Profit. Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, if the net profit after
tax of the Target Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 (“2022 Actual Net Profit”) is less than or equal
to 70% of the 2022 Guaranteed Profit, the Vendors and Vendors’ Guarantors shall jointly and severally within
thirty Business Days from the date on which the 2022 Audited Accounts are delivered to the Purchaser
repurchase or procure its affiliates to repurchase all the shares of the Target Company which are owned by
the Purchaser on such date at the consideration of RMB265,000,000 and the Board has been communicating
with the Vendors and the Vendors’ Guarantors pursuant to the terms of the Sale and Purchase Agreement.

The Company will make further announcement in due course in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules (including Rule 13.09 and Rule 14.36B of the Listing Rules) as and when further information
becomes available, including the exact difference between the 2022 Actual Net Profit and the 2022
Guaranteed Profit, the status of exercise of the Company’s right to require the Vendors and the Vendors’
Guarantors to repurchase the shares of the Target Company.
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Corporate
Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Code on Corporate Governance Practices

Our Company is committed to achieve high standard of corporate governance. Our directors believe that
sound and reasonable corporate governance practices are essential for our growth and for safeguarding and
maximising shareholders’ interests. Our Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules during FY2022.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY THE DIRECTORS

Our Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Specific enquiries have been made to all Directors by our Company to confirm
that all Directors have complied with the Model Code during FY2022.

THE BOARD

Board responsibilities

Our Board is responsible for the overall development and guidance of our Group. It formulates business
strategies and policies for our Group and oversees the effectiveness of management strategies to maximize
long-term shareholders’ value. Our Group’s management team takes charge of the daily operations of our
Group. Our Board primarily performs the following duties:

—  formulate long-term business strategies;

— approve annual budgets;

- review operating and financial performance;

— discuss and approve acquisition opportunities, investments and significant capital expenses;

— approve the appointment of Directors and the company secretary of our Company; and

—  monitor the performance of our Group’s management.

The chairman of our Board is responsible for the management and operation of our Board. Our executive
Directors (including the chairman of our Board) also take charge of the operations of our Company.
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Board composition

For FY2022 and as at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine Directors, including five executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors. The members of the
Board are as follows:

Chairman: Mr. Wang Dongxing
Executive Directors: Mr. Wang Dongxing
Mr. Shi Weixin

Mr. Wang Changhai
Mr. Zhang Zengguo

Mr. Ci Xiaolei
Non-executive Director: Ms. Wu Rong
Independent non-executive Directors: Ms. Shan Xueyan
Mr. Wang Zefeng
Ms. Jiao Jie

Our Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of the business of our Company.

Biographical details of our Directors and their respective terms of appointment are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

As to the relationships among our Board members, Mr. Wang Dongxing, Mr. Shi Weixin, Mr. Zhang Zengguo,
Mr. Wang Changhai and Ms. Wu Rong are parties to a concert parties agreement. For further details of their
relationship, please refer to notes 1 and 2 of the section headed “Reports of the Directors — Directors’
Interests in Securities”. Other than the relationships between Mr. Wang Dongxing, Mr. Shi Weixin, Mr. Zhang
Zengguo, Mr. Wang Changhai and Ms. Wu Rong, there is no other relationship between other members of our
Board.

Retirement of Directors and re-election of Directors

In accordance with the articles of association of our Company (the “Articles”), one third (or if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) in number of our Directors shall
retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting of our Company and provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three years. The retiring
Directors are eligible to offer themselves for re-election at such annual general meeting. Pursuant to Article 87
of the Articles, Mr. Shi Weixin, Mr. Wang Changhai and Mr. Ci Xiadei shall retire from office at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 31 May 2023 (the “AGM”) and being eligible for re-
election, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Mr. Wang Zefeng and Ms. Jiao Jie has been serving as an independent non-executive Director for more than
nine years since November 2007 and January 2014. Pursuant to code provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, (a)
serving more than nine years could be relevant to the determination of a non-executive director’s
independence; and (b) if an independent non-executive director serves more than nine years, his further
appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the shareholders of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. Wang Zefeng and Ms. Jiao Jie will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by
way of separate resolutions to be approved by the shareholders of the Company in the AGM.
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Independence of independent non-executive Directors

Our Company has received from each of our independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
his/her independence for FY2022 in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Our Company considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Board meetings and general meetings

For FY2022, our Company held a total of eleven Board meetings, one annual general meeting. The attendance
records of each member of the Board at the Board meetings and the general meeting are set out in the
following table:

Board meetings General meetings
Director attendance/held attendance/held

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Dongxing 8/8 1/1
Mr. Shi Weixin 8/8 11
Mr. Wang Changhai 8/8 11
Mr. Zhang Zengguo 8/8 1/1
Mr. Ci Xiaolei 8/8 1/1

Non-executive Director
Ms. Wu Rong 8/8 11

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Shan Xueyan 8/8 11
Mr. Wang Zefeng 8/8 i7al
Ms. Jiao Jie 8/8 11

Directors’ training and continuous professional development

Each of our newly appointed Directors is provided with the necessary induction and information to ensure that
such Director has a proper understanding of our operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities
under the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.

Furthermore, from time to time, the company secretary of our Company updates and provides training and
written materials on the latest development of the applicable laws, rules and regulations to our Directors.
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According to the records maintained by our Company, our Directors received the following training during
FY2022:

Type of training
Director attended

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Dongxing A
Mr. Shi Weixin A
Mr. Wang Changhai A
Mr. Zhang Zengguo A
Mr. Ci Xiaolei A
Non-executive Director
Ms. Wu Rong A
Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Shan Xueyan A
Mr. Wang Zefeng A
Ms. Jiao Jie A
Legend:
A — reading materials relating to the operations, businesses and the laws, rules and regulations relevant to our Group, and directors’ duties

and responsibilities.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ TERMS OF APPOINTMENT

For the terms of appointment of our non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors, please
refer to the section headed “Report of the Directors — DIRECTORS — Directors’ service contracts” on page
67 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Our Board has established an audit committee in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the
audit committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting process, internal control system and risk
management of our Company and to provide advice and comments to our Board. The members of the audit
committee are all of our independent non-executive Directors. During FY2022, our audit committee held two
meetings to review our annual results for FY2021 and interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2022,
and our risk management and internal control systems.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Our Board has established a remuneration committee in compliance with the CG Code. The remuneration
committee consists of three members, of whom one is an executive Director, namely Mr. Wang Dongxing, and
two are independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Zefeng and Ms. Shan Xueyan. Mr. Wang
Zefeng is the chairman of the remuneration committee. The primary duties of the remuneration committee are
to review and give recommendations to our Board in relation to the remuneration and other benefits paid by
our Company to our Directors and the senior management of our Group. The remuneration of all our Directors
and the senior management of our Group is subject to regular monitoring by the remuneration committee to
ensure that the levels of their remuneration and compensation are appropriate. During FY2022, our
remuneration committee held one meeting to determine the policy for the remuneration of our executive
Directors and assess performance of our executive Directors.
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During FY2022, the Remuneration Committee mainly performed the following duty:

° assessing performance of the executive Directors reviewed the Group’s remuneration policy and reviewed
and approved the remuneration package of the executive Directors and senior management for the year
of 2022

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid employees as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Our Board has established a nomination committee in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the
nomination committee are to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement our Company’s corporate strategy.

The nomination committee consists of three members, of whom one is an executive Director, namely Mr.
Wang Dongxing, and two are independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Zefeng and Ms. Jiao Jie.
Ms. Jiao Jie is the chairlady of the nomination committee. During FY2022, our nomination committee held one
meeting to review the structure, size and composition of our Board, the retirement of our Directors by rotation
and the re-appointment of retiring Directors at the AGM.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy. The purpose of the policy is to set out the basic
principles to be followed to ensure that the Board has appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives necessary to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards of corporate
governance. Under the policy, the selection of Board candidates shall be based on a range of diversity
perspectives with reference to the Company’s business model and specific needs, including but not limited to
gender, race, language, cultural background, educational background, industry experience and professional
experience, which are the measurable objectives for implementing the policy.

The nomination committee has primary responsibility for identifying suitably qualified candidates to become
members of the Board and shall give adequate consideration to the board diversity policy in selection of
Board candidates. Board members nomination and appointments will continue to be made on merit basis
based on the Company’s business needs from time to time while taking into account diversity.

The nomination committee is also responsible for reviewing the policy, developing and reviewing measurable
objectives for implementing the policy and monitoring the progress on achieving these measurable objectives.
The review of the policy and the measurable objectives shall be carried out at least annually to ensure the
continued effectiveness of the Board.

During FY2022, the nomination committee has considered the board diversity policy and whether the Board
has the appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives necessary to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards of corporate governance. After due consideration,
the nomination committee has concluded that based on the Company’s existing business model and specific
needs, the current composition of the Board satisfies the board diversity policy for FY2022.
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Board Diversity Policy

Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills, including but not limited to pulp and paper making,
overall business management, finance and accounting, mechanical design and law. The Board has a relatively
wide range of ages, ranging from 42 years old to 66 years old, and there are both male and female
representatives on the Board, with male representatives accounting for 67% and female representatives
accounting for 33%. The Board is of the view that our Board satisfies the board diversity policy.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement the Board Diversity Policy and review such
objectives from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the Board is sufficiently diverse and the Board has not
set any measurable objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

For FY2022, among the employees of the Group, 75% are male and 25% are female. The board of Directors
believes that the current gender proportion is relatively reasonable and has realized gender diversity, and will
further evaluate and take effective measures according to business development.

Board committees meetings

Our audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee held meetings during FY2022. The
attendance records of each member of our audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee are set out in the following table:

Audit Remuneration Nomination
committee committee committee
Director attendance/held attendance/held attendance/held
Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Dongxing - 11 11
Mr. Shi Weixin — — —
Mr. Wang Changhai - - -
Mr. Zhang Zengguo - - -
Mr. Ci Xiaolei - - -
Non-executive Director
Ms. Wu Rong — — —
Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Shan Xueyan 2/2 1/1 -
Mr. Wang Zefeng 2/2 1/1 1/1
Ms. Jiao Jie 2/2 - 1/1

COMPANY SECRETARY

For FY2022, in accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael, the company
secretary of our Company, has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training. Biographical
details of Mr. Chan are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

Annual Report 2022 China Sunshine Paper Holdings Company Limited 27



28

Corporate
Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY

Our Board is responsible for developing and reviewing our Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance. It reviews and monitors the training and continuous professional development of our Directors and
senior management of our Company; reviews and monitors our Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; develops, reviews and monitors the code of conduct
applicable to our Company’s employees and Directors; and reviews our Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and the disclosure in this corporate governance report. During FY2022, the Board has carried out such
responsibilities during the Board meetings held in the year.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Currently, our Company does not have the position of chief executive. Mr.
Wang Dongxing is the chairman of our Board. Mr. Wang Changhai was the general manager of Shandong
Century Sunshine Paper Group Co., Ltd (“Century Sunshine”), the principal operating subsidiary of our Group
for FY2022. As such, our Company has complied with Code 2.1 of the CG Code in respect of the
appointment of chairman and chief executive.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For FY2022, we have engaged the auditor of our Company for audit services only. The fee paid or payable to
the auditor of our Company in respect of the audit services and non-audit services (including interim review
and continuing connected party) provided amounted to approximately RMB2.1 million and RMBO0.3 million,
respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Our Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for our Group’s risk management and internal control
systems and for reviewing their effectiveness. The Company has an internal audit and control department
which carries out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
risk management and internal control systems and reports to the Board.

During FY2022, our Board has conducted its regular and annual review of the effectiveness of our risk
management and internal control systems, in particular, the operational and financial reports, compliance
control and risk management reports, budgets and business plans provided by the management. The audit
committee of our Company also performs regular review of our Group’s performance, risk management and
internal control systems and discusses with the Board, in order to ensure effective measures are in place to
protect material assets and identify business risks of our Group. Such review in FY2022 did not reveal any
major issues and the Board considers our risk management and internal control systems effective and
adequate. Our Group’s review procedures involved in the risk management and internal control mainly
included:

(1) A list of risks was created after the scope of risks was determined and risks were identified.
(2)  The impacts brought by possible financial losses due to risks on operating efficiency, continuous
development, and reputation were assessed with reference to possible occurrence of various potential

risks and the attention drawn from the management of our Group, based on which the priority of the
risks was determined.
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(8)  Our risk management measures with respect to material risks were identified, internal control over the
design and implementation of risk management measures were assessed, and measures to improve the
weaknesses were formulated.

(4) By assessing internal controls and management’s implementation of rectification measures with respect
to material risks, our Group regularly reviewed and summarized the risk management and internal control
systems to realize the efficient operation and constant improvement of risk management.

(65)  The risk management handbook was formulated to address risk management and internal control, pursuant
to which, the terms of reference of the management, the Board, and the Audit Committee with respect
to their risk management work were clearly determined, and risk management and internal control
systems were monitored on an ongoing basis.

(6) The management submitted reports to the Audit Committee on regular reviews and assessment results
with respect to risk management and internal control systems, material risk factors, and the relevant
countermeasures.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated financial statements for FY2022,
which were prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
reporting responsibility of the external auditor of our Company on the consolidated financial statements of our
Group are set out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 77 to 82 of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Under Article 58 of the Articles, in addition to annual general meeting, one or more shareholders of our
Company holding 10% or more of the paid up capital of our Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of our Company have the right to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by our Board
through written requisition, provided that on the date of requisition, such shareholder or shareholders are
holding 10% or more of the paid up capital of our Company. Such extraordinary general meeting called may
transact any business specified in the said written requisition and such meeting shall be held within two
calendar months after the deposit of the written requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, our Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the shareholder or shareholders requesting the meeting may do so in
the same manner and all reasonable expenses incurred by such shareholder or shareholders as a result of the
failure of our Board to convene such meeting shall be reimbursed by our Company. The same procedures
apply to any proposal to be tabled at the annual general meeting for adoption.

We value opinions from our shareholders and acknowledge the importance of communication with our
shareholders. We have a section titled “Investors Relations” on our Company’s website
www.sunshinepaper.com.cn where shareholders may access the published information, announcements and
circulars of our Company. Shareholders who have enquiries may also send us email to the email accounts as
disclosed in the “Investors Relations” on our Company’s website. The Board has reviewed the shareholders’
communication policy during the year,and confirmed that these policies have been effectively implemented.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes to the constitutional documents of our Company during FY2022.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

Company information and principal activities

As a leading Chinese papermaking enterprise in the market of white top linerboards and coated-white top
linerboards, the Group has ranked among the top 75 in the world’s paper industry for five consecutive years
since 2017. The Group focuses on the production and sales of high-quality, multipurposed, and ecofriendly
packaging paper products, including white top linerboard, coated-white top linerboard, core board and
high-grade corrugated paper.

Reporting Scope and Reference Guidelines

This environmental, social and governance report of our Group for 2022, which describes our comprehensive
performance of major products in environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) aspects, is disclosed to the
stakeholders with reference to the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” as set out in
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Guide”), the reporting
scope of which is consistent with that for the previous year.

Materiality: the most important environmental and social issues are determined from the perspectives
of major equity owners and stakeholders following analysis;

Quantitative: key performance indicators are reported on a quantitative basis, with explanations using
data and appropriate words, before improvement targets are established;

Balance: the Group’s comprehensive overall performance in environmental, social and governance
aspects is reported on an objective basis;

Consistency: consistent methods to disclose statistics are used to make data comparable.

The content of this report was jointly prepared by the relevant responsible persons for the ESG practices of
the Group and important stakeholders, representing the collective efforts made by the management and
employees from the safety management center, environmental department, human resource management
center, environment and energy department, quality control department, marketing department, procurement
management center, enterprise management department, and financial department, which was finally approved
by the board of directors to ensure the truthfulness and accuracy of the content, which can generate values
for all stakeholders.

Reporting Period

Unless otherwise specified, this ESG report covers the overall performance of the Group for the period from
1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.
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CORPORATE SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOVERNANCE

Green Production Concept

“Green, low-carbon, energy-saving, and emission-reducing methods” represents the concept that has been
advocated and practised by the Group throughout the production process, and we have dedicated ourselves
to the full utilisation of renewable resources and waste paper, which are used as our major raw materials for
the production of high quality packaging paper, to diminish its impact on the overall environment, as well as
the logging activities. Meanwhile, we constantly strengthen each and every fundamental aspect of our
management, and establish, bit by bit, a scientific, highly-sophisticated and professional management structure
and we have obtained the Environmental Management System Certificate, which will facilitate a polished
performance in corporate and social responsibilities.

ESG Management Policy and Statement of the Board

The Group established a leading ESG management team comprised of the board of directors, which is fully
responsible for setting the strategic direction of the Group’s ESG aspects, while ensuring the effectiveness of
ESG risk control and internal control mechanisms. In addition, short-term, medium-term and long-term
development directions are established, while the risks and opportunities of the Group’s important ESG issues
are subject to assessment. The relevant risk management and internal control systems are put under review to
ensure their effectiveness, and information technologies are utilized to establish and improve the internal
control and supervision systems. Furthermore, independent third-party institutions will be appointed to conduct
assessments of the relevant aspects, as part of our efforts to seek professional advice from external experts.

The Group has always adhered to the highest level of environmental standards. Continuous efforts have been
made to enhance the construction of environmental-friendly facilities and our investment in environmental
conservation. With good implementation of the environmental management requirements stipulated in the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Air Pollution, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste and the Regulation on the Administration of Permitting of Pollutant
Discharges, as well as other regional laws and regulations and emission standards, we have become a
resource- and environmental-friendly corporation.

The Board supervises the senior management of the Group to continue optimizing the governance structure by
promoting the implementation of ESG measures, and receiving regular reports from the ESG task force to lead
the Group in the green, sustainable and healthy development. The Executive Directors are fully responsible for
the implementation of the main tasks related to safety and environmental protection. The Executive Directors
and heads of various functional departments hold special seminars on material issues such as the
environment, society, and sustainable development to identify, assess, and select issues of significant
importance to the Group. Subsequently, strategies and plans are formulated to address these issues.
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The heads of functional departments of the Group regularly hold management meetings with the executive
directors to report on operational progress, including progress towards ESG-related goals, and a dedicated
task force is established to follow up high-risk issues.

Scope of material issues

Environmental Sewage discharge Gas emissions
Solid waste Use of Resources
Environment and Natural Resources
Climate Change

Employment and Labour Standard Employment and Employee Benefits
Health and Safety Labour Standard
Development and Training

Operation Management Supply chain management Product Responsibility
Anti-corruption  Community Investment

Stakeholder Engagement

Stakeholder engagement represents an important path for the Group to understand the opinions of different
stakeholders on the progress of ESG management of the Group. The Group stresses great importance to
stakeholder engagement and appreciates amicable relationships with customers, suppliers, employees,
investors, and other stakeholders. Stakeholders can express their opinions and recommendations to the Group
through the following channels to encourage the Group to make progress in the ESG development.

Stakeholders Communication Channels

Customers Customer service hotline Regular visit by our sales team
Customer feedback meeting

Suppliers and partners Onsite inspection Regular review
Supplier Exchange fairs Anti-commercial bribery agreement

Employees Departmental meeting Employee interview
Employee activities Employee training
Internal complaint email

Shareholders and investors AGM Annual report and interim report
Corporate website Operating results roadshow presentation

Government and regulatory bodies Meeting and interview policy consultation

During 2022, besides being selected into the 2022 list of provincial water-saving enterprises and the national
list of “Water Efficiency Leader in the Papermaking Industry”, the Group was included in the list of pilot
entities that improve the amateur life of employees, which fully demonstrates we have earned social
recognition.
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The Board is fully responsible for the ESG strategy and reporting. During the reporting year, the Group was
not aware of any violation of laws or regulations related to environmental protection. The Group will continue
to pay attention to and practice issues that are closely related to the ESG aspects, and commit itself to
improving the management and utilization of resources, energy and water. In the meantime, the Company will
continue to enhance its research, development, and production capabilities for environmental products in
response to new challenges arising from the changing supply chain of global resources and energy safety.

ENVIRONMENTAL

A1. Emissions

The Group has been committed to the treatment of waste water, exhaust gas and solid waste during the
production process, by establishing and designing an efficient emissions treatment system that continues with
stable operation and improvement.

The Group is equipped with environmental engineers, sewage treatment workers, environmental monitoring
personnel and other technical backbones. Based on the principle of “protection and prevention first,
comprehensive management, public participation, accountability”, an accountability system for environmental
protection has been established to clarify the responsibilities of the Company and relevant responsible
personnel. In order to respond to environmental emergencies, the Company has formulated the environmental
emergency response plan, pursuant to which, we regularly organize inspections on environmental safety
hazards, conduct emergency drills and arrange sessions to update our staff on the latest development of
environmental protection laws and regulations. Our Group will make unremitting efforts to comply with both
national and local regulations on environmental protection and implement any decision made on energy
conservation and emission reduction issues. In addition, the Group has a comprehensive emission monitoring
and control system in place and has formulated a self-monitoring program for pollutants to regularly monitor
pollutants such as waste water, exhaust gas and noise generated by the Group to ensure the up-to-standard
discharge of all pollutants and to reduce the impact on the environment.

Sewage Disposal

The Group adopts internationally leading production technologies for paper making, which are comprised of
advanced water-saving technologies such as multi-disc white water graded reuse, cascade utilization, steam
condensed water recovery, equipment sealing water system recovery, and reuse of reclaimed water after
sewage treatment, which can effectively reduce the generation and discharge of wastewater at source. In the
same time, the establishment of two water treatment engineering, designed by Paques of the Netherlands,
was completed by the Group; boosted a daily capacity of 55,000 m® and applied the pre-treatment process+
anaerobic removal + aerobic removal + flocculation technique — the most effective wastewater treatment
solution worldwide. With our water reuse rate of above 95% and our clean production practices in terms of
clean water consumption, integrated energy consumption and bone dry fibre consumption all within the Level
B Standard of China, we had simultaneously incorporated water treatment, water conservation, energy
conservation, and low carbon emissions into our production that contributed to reduction of wastewater
pollutants and conservation of resources as well as our production cost reduction. In order to further reduce
the emission of odor gas in the process of sewage treatment, the Group invested more than RMB70 million in
2021 to upgrade the facilities for controlling odor during the sewage treatment and build a new aeration tank
to realize the fully enclosed operation of the front-end process of sewage treatment and effectively reduce the
emission of odor gas. During 2022, its operation remained in good conditions.
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In 2022, environmental indicators in discharged wastewater of the Group (including chemical oxygen demand
(COD), ammonia nitrogen, total nitrogen, total suspended matter (SS), chroma, biochemical oxygen demand,
the potential of hydrogen (pH), etc.) have met the emission standards.

The Group’s discharge is indirect, and the wastewater is discharged into downstream sewage treatment plants
through the municipal pipe network for further treatment. During the reporting period, the emissions of major
pollutants discharged by the Group into downstream sewage treatment plants and the total discharge targets
for 2023 (based on the requirements of the pollutant discharge license) were as follows:

Volume of Volume of

Volume of discharge Volume of discharge

discharge per ton of discharge per ton of

Discharge for 2022* paper for 2021 paper
(tons/ (tons/

10 thousand 10 thousand

(tons)  tons of paper) (tons)  tons of paper)

COD 901 4.76 721.63 4.47
Ammonia nitrogen 4.221 0.02 3.26 0.02
total nitrogen 80.8 0.42 64.95 0.40

* The discharge is measured by automatic online monitoring equipment

In the coming years, the Group will continue to comply with the control requirements of total discharge
amount of the pollutant discharge license to ensure that environmental indicators in discharged wastewater
(including chemical oxygen demand (COD) of less than 1,394.32 tons/year, ammonia nitrogen of less than
95.98 tons/year, total nitrogen of less than 346.62 tons/year, total suspended matter (SS), chroma,
biochemical oxygen demand, the potential of hydrogen (pH), etc.) meet the emission standards.
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The Group runs a self-operated thermal power station to ensure that there is a sufficient steam and electricity
supply in the course of production. All the boilers in the thermal power station are circulating fluidized bed
boilers, which can effectively incinerate various coal types, thus reducing energy consumption at the source
and mitigate the effects exerted on the environment.

Sulphur dioxide:

Nitrogen Oxides:

Particulates:

The Group adopted the “limestone and gypsum wet method”, with an actual
desulfurization efficiency of over 99% the emission concentration of which is far below
the national emission standard of 35mg/m?.

The “boiler low-NOx combustion + SNCR (non- catalytic reduction) method” is adopted
by the Group for nitrogen oxides. The most advanced domestic spray technology was
adopted to further increase the contact area of flue gas and denitration agent, as a
result of which, the denitration efficiency was increased from 75% to 90% and the
emission concentration of nitrogen oxides could continuously maintain at below
40mg/m?, which completely complied with the requirement of the emission
concentration of nitrogen oxides of less than 50mg/m? stipulated in Shandong Province
Air Pollutants Discharge Standards for Coalburned Power Plant (DB37/664-2019)
implemented on 1 January 2020.

The Group applied “electrostatic dedusting + wet electrostatic dedusting method”,
resulting in a substantially lower emission concentration as compared to the national
standard of 5mg/m?®. The Group adopts enclosed and fully-automatic dust suppression
coal shed to avoid the problem of dust pollution in the process of coal loading and
unloading, warehousing and transportation, which can better protect the surrounding
environment and further improve the working and living environment of employees.
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The Group achieved the goal of ultra-low emissions of sulphur dioxide, nitrogen oxides as well as particulates,
which can effectively improve environmental quality. During the reporting period, the emission indicators for
various gases were as follows:

Emission Emission

Emissions intensity in Emissions intensity in

Type of emissions unit for 2022* 2022 for 2021* 2021
(tons/ (tons/

10 thousand 10 thousand

tons of paper) tons of paper)

SO, Ton 59.9 0.1907 63.79 0.40
NOx Ton 284.9 0.9072 263.98 1.64
Particulate Ton 9.2 0.0293 5.98 0.037

Emissions are measured by automatic online monitoring equipment

The Group’s greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions mainly come from coal-fired power generation in its own power
plants and purchased electricity consumption in the production process. In line with the national dual carbon
target of “carbon peaking” and “carbon neutral”, the Group has built 2*BSOMW heat and electricity
co-generation units since 2018. In 2021, the phase Il of the expansion project of the new heat and electricity
co-generation units of the Group was fully put into operation, which effectively reduces the unit consumption
rate, energy consumption and CO2 emissions.

During the relevant period, the Group’s GJG emissions were as follows:

2022 2021

GHG emissions 2022 Intensity 2021 Intensity
(tons/unit (tons/unit

output) output)

Emissions (tons of CO, equivalent) 1,941,111 0.67 1,852,645 1.15
Direct emissions 1,671,397 0.53 1,674,289 1.04
Indirect emissions 269,714 0.14 178,356 0.11

Calculation of GHG emissions is based on the “Reporting Guidelines for the Calculation and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions from
Enterprises (Power Generation Facilities)”, and conversion factors come from the third-party monitoring report, and the default value in the
“Reporting Guidelines for the Calculation and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Enterprises (Power Generation Facilities)”.

In 2023, as the neighboring enterprises will continue to expand their production, it is expected that there will
be a slight increase in the amount of steam used. However, the Group continues to study and research the
most advanced emission reduction methods in the PRC at present, consult and exchange with a number of
environmental protection technology companies in respect of emission reduction measures and the
improvement of the process level.
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The emissions of air pollutants planned to be achieved in 2023 are as follows:

co

2

Total amount of coal consumed will be 603,400 tonnes of standard coal, translated into 1,630,000 tonnes of

Co2.

SO

2

Total SO2 emission amount will be 55.6 tonnes and the measured concentration of emission will be 9mg/mq.

NOx

Total NOx emission amount will be 272 tonnes and the measured concentration of emission will be 42mg/m?.

Particulate
Total particulate emission amount will be 8.5 tonnes and the measured concentration of emission will be
0.75mg/m3.

Solid Waste

Two types of solid waste generated in the course of operation of the Group are mainly non-hazardous waste
generated during paper manufacturing and domestic waste generated by daily administrative work. The
disposal measures of the four main types of solid wastes generated are as follows:

Sludge: Sludge is mainly generated in the process of sewage treatment, and will be transported to Changle
Shengshi Thermoelectricity Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of the Company, for incineration with coal. By such
process, it could generate steam and electricity for our production, realizing the reutilization of sludge.

2. Coal ash and cinder: Coal ash and cinder are mainly produced by our self-operated thermal power station
and will be sold to qualified units as raw materials for building materials to achieve secondary utilization.
3. Waste plastic: Some waste plastics and iron nails sorted out in the process of waste paper pulping will
be recycled and disposed by the qualified partners of the Group to realize the recycling of solid waste.
4, Hazardous waste: Some hazardous waste generated from equipment maintenance, forklift trucks and other
processes in the operation of the Group will be regulated and managed in strict compliance with State’s
laws and regulations on hazardous waste management. The storage location, account book, transfer and
disposal complied with the requirements of the “Hazardous Waste Standardized Management Indicator
System”. We appoint qualified units to carry out detoxification treatments on a regular basis.
Generation in Generation in
Name of solid waste unit 2022* 2021*
Sludge tons 97,707 85,015
Coal Ash and cinder tons 299,707 317,326
Waste plastic tons 66,316 24,182
Hazardous Waste tons 45 26

The output is based on the data obtained from the Company’s internal measuring equipment, and all measuring equipment is regularly
calibrated.
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In 2022, the Group materialized resource recycling, waste reduction and harmless treatment for all of its solid
wastes and achieved zero discharge.

In the coming years, we will continue to take effective measures to meet zero discharge standards in the
coming years to reduce the impact on the environment.

For the purposes of zero emissions, the Group performed detailed classification, designated storage, and
standardized transfer of solid waste so generated based on the solid waste pollution control principles of
harmless treatment, waste reduction, and resource recycling. For the waste generated during papermaking, the
Group has established the “Solid Waste Management System” and “Hazardous Waste Management System” to
classify the waste generated by the Group’s activities and clarify the treatment operation process.
Furthermore, guidelines are provided for, and records are required for, the storage, transport and disposal of
waste to ensure the safety and compliance of the treatment process.

A2. Use of Resources

Under the energy policy of “implementing clean production in compliance with laws and regulations; optimizing
energy structure to achieve comprehensive process control; developing green paper industry to realize
scientific circular development (BSFAEER - HTBEREE  BLEREE 2HBEEH  REBERE
R EREEHKZE), the Group actively promotes circular economy and improves the utilization of resources
by virtue of advancement in technology and system innovation. The Group makes good use of reclaimed water
recycle and residual heat utilization to realize the graded utilization of energy while implementing “waste
treatment by waste” and “waste reuse” to reduce the amount of external waste discharge and to build an
ecological friendly first-class international papermaking enterprise with sustainable development.

The Group pays close attention to energy consumption during our production activities. In order to reduce the
energy consumption in the production process, in 2014, the Group implemented an energy system
optimization project for the production line, which mainly adopted energy- saving and consumption reduction
measures such as eliminating energy-consuming equipment (e.g. replacing inefficient motors with inverter
motors, replacing energy-saving lighting fixtures, eliminating refrigeration equipment, replacing vacuum pumps
with turbine fans, etc.), and recycling residual heat from dry section to further reduce the energy consumption
of tons of products. The project was unanimously recognized by the relevant authorities of the PRC and
selected as a key project of energy conservation and a major demonstration project of circular economy and
resource conservation in 2014. In 2019, the Group also established and obtained ISO50001 Energy
Management System. In 2019, the Company was recognized by the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology as a national “green factory” after a selection process. In 2021, the Company was recognized by
the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology as a national “Green Supply Chain” after a selection
process. The three products of white top linerboard, coated white top linerboard and core board of the
Company were recognized as “green products” by the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology. From
2019 to 2021, in response to the government’s grand goal of “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality” under
the principle where non-fossil energy consumption and carbon emissions are reduced, the Company utilizes an
area of 40,000 square meters of unused roof of the plant and the unused space on the roof of the raw
material shed to install 275Wp polysilicon photovoltaic modules to form a photovoltaic power generation facility
with a total installed capacity of 1.9 MW,. In 2022, the annual consumption of photovoltaic power generation
amounted to approximately 2 million kwh, resulting in the reduction of approximately1800tCO2 in the annual
carbon emissions.
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In terms of the use of water resources, as the Group’s production water is mainly tap water approved by the
local government and filed with the relevant authorities, there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose. In order to reduce the waste of water resources, the Group actively promotes reclaimed water
recycle technology and installs an advanced water recycling system in each production line to reduce
wastewater generation from the source. In addition, the Group has built a domestic advanced wastewater
treatment facility for effective treatment of generated wastewater and most of the wastewater is recycled for
production after being treated, with a recycling rate of more than 75%, effectively reducing the consumption of
fresh water. In 2022, the Company was selected as a “Water Efficiency Leader” by the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology for its excellent performance in water conservation and water reuse.

In 2022, the Group’s water conservation was 10,439,737 tons and consumption of fresh water per ton of
paper was 5.52 tons per ton of paper, which was much higher than the national 1st grade standard of 17
tons per ton of paper according to the requirement of the Evaluation Indicator System for Clean Production in
Pulp and Paper Industry (434172 /52 £ EFTERIZER).

In the next five years, the Group will control the consumption of fresh water per ton of paper to no more than
6 tons per ton of paper.

To achieve the aforesaid targets, the Group will give priority to the purchase of high-efficiency equipment and
the renovation of electricity-using facilities to reduce energy consumption. We will also adopt effective energy
measurement, monitoring, statistics and assessment systems, incorporate energy management into daily
production and operation management, and set up dedicated positions to help the Group strictly supervise the
energy consumption of import and export, production system and non-production system.

In terms of packaging materials, the Group’s products are mainly packed with kraft packaging paper and
stretch film for the purpose of avoiding contamination or damage to the products. During the reporting period,
the amount of major packaging materials used by the Group was 1,762 tons, of which kraft packaging paper
accounted for 78.6% and the remaining was plastic packaging. The Group will also continue to adopt the
principles of simple packaging and green packaging to reduce the impact on the environment.

Consumption Consumption
Energy Unit for 2022 Intensity for 2021 Intensity
Coal standard coal 618,420 0.33 590,514 0.37
equivalent
Water tons 10,439,737 5.62 9,433,949 5.85
Packing materials tons 1,762 0.001 2,005 0.001
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A3. Environment and Natural Resources

The Group’s business activities are closely related to the environment and natural resources. As a recycled
papermaking company that uses waste paper as its main raw material, in order to in line with the national
energy conservation and environmental protection policy, the Group focuses on the recycling of waste paper,
which can greatly reduce deforestation, save national forest resources and reduce the impact of man-made
activities on the natural environment, so as to make outstanding contributions to the protection of forest
resources.

Playing an active role in promoting environmental protection and efficient use of resources, the Group
monitored the potential impacts of our business operations on the environment on a real-time basis and
promoted green office and production in adherence to four basic principles, namely, “reduce”, “reuse”,
“recycle” and “replace”, in order to minimize the impact of our operations on the environment.

A4. Climate Change

With the increasing global greenhouse effect, the trend of global warming is becoming increasingly apparent,
and natural disasters such as rainstorm, floods and earthquakes are frequent worldwide, which are potential
risks to the Group’s business activities. To cope with the increasingly serious climate threats, the management
of the Group regularly assesses the potential risks that may result from climate change in its production and
operation and takes preventive and contingency measures.

The plant of the Group is strategically located and designed in accordance with national safety requirements
such as earthquake prevention and lightning protection, which can effectively copy with extreme weather
conditions. At the same time, an extreme weather emergency response leadership team has been established
and an extreme weather emergency response plan has been formulated by the Group, which stipulates the
functions of each member, early warning actions and emergency measures. In daily activities, the Group
organizes regular training and drills for employees to improve their alertness and ability to respond to
disasters. The leadership team of the Group can quickly assess the impact of extreme weather such as
typhoon, rainstorm, lightning, hail and flood, and take appropriate safety measures and provide safe places for
our employees to take shelter temporarily, so as to ensure the safety of our employees and avoid the loss of
production machinery. In addition, each plant is equipped with thermal power stations and backup power
supply to ensure continuous stability of the plant and reduce the risk of production suspension due to regional
power outages.

In 2022, the Group did not experience any shutdown losses or employee injury caused by climate change and
natural disasters.

In the coming years, the management of the Group will regularly assess the potential risks that may be
caused by climate change in production and operations, and take preventive and countermeasures.
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B. SOCIAL

Employment and Labor Practices

The Group adheres to the corporate core value of “a people-oriented approach for the happiness of labour”,
and makes continuous efforts in the protection of employees’ legal rights and interests, health and safety
maintenance, career development and training, etc., to enhance employees’ sense of achievement, gain,
existence, security, growth and responsibility, and to maximize benefits for employees.

B1. Employment and Employee Benefits

The Group conducts its recruitment and hiring in strict compliance with Labour Law of the People’s Republic
of China. The emolument policy of our employees is aimed at attracting, retaining and motivating talented
individuals. The principle behind the policy is to determine the employees’ remuneration according to their job
positions and performance, which reflects market standards; an organised adjustment would be made every
year in accordance with the circumstances. Remuneration package for each employee is generally determined
based on his or her job nature and position with reference to market standards.

The Group has established a comprehensive employee welfare system, and has formulated and firmly
implemented rules and regulations on employee rights and interests such as the “Employee Attendance
Management System (8 T 2 8% I2 )", “Compensation Management System(37 Bl & 3£ %] )" and “Labour
Relations Management System (%5 &) B8 /& & 2 %I /Z)” During the reporting period, the Group found no major
violations related to employment and employee benefits.

Employees may also be entitled to certain welfare benefits, such as “five insurances and one fund”, and
various statutory paid leaves (maternity leave, breast-feeding leave, marriage leave, bereavement leave,
paternity leave and home leave etc.), meal allowance, housing allowance, allowance for certain titles, subsidies
for further education, longevity pay and festive holidays.

The Group provides comfortable and healthy employee dormitories equipped with central air-conditioning and
broadband to fully guarantee the living environment of employees, and employees can also apply for welfare
rental housing. At the same time, the Company provides free commuter buses and living facilities such as
bathing and laundry rooms, indoor basketball halls, table tennis rooms, billiard rooms, and electronic reading
rooms, as well as cultural and sports leisure places.
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The Group arranges working hours of employees in strict compliance with the provisions of laws, ensuring that
no more than 8 working hours one day, and implements “Three sets in operation; one set idle (/4 If = i &5)”

working model in production workshop, safeguarding the rest time of frontline employees to the greatest
extent.

Our Group conducts regular review and updating on its staff manual. Contents of the manual include the key
corporate information of the Group, our policy, procedures, career promotion path, compensation and welfare,
occupational safety and health, complaint filing and reporting procedures.

Our Group assures employees a safe, healthy and comfortable work environment and gradually establishes a
system of career development planning for employees, regardless of age, gender and ethnicity. It should serve
as a platform of self- realization for employees and inspire them to enhance work efficiency.

The Group offers equal opportunities to employees with regard to recruitment, training and development,
promotion, and benefit. We strive to eliminate any kind of discriminations that are based on gender, ethnicity,
religious belief, race, age, marriage status, family status, disability, pregnancy or other prohibited factors
stipulated in relevant laws that they are vulnerable to discrimination or being deprived of equal opportunities.
Our Group also thoroughly recognizes the importance of recruiting employees of different age, gender and
race in corporate development, and has established a comprehensive “Anti-discrimination and Anti-harassment
Management System ({(RIEZH « RBEEEHIE))".
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What is more is that we have a trade union and a mutual fund that represent the common good of majority
workforce, so that the people-oriented and caring culture could be put into practice. In 2022, more than
RMB119,000 of mutual funds were issued to relieve the economic pressure of employees and enhance their
sense of belonging. We also invited professionals to conduct online and offline psychological counseling for
employees to help them reduce life and work stress and improve their self-coordination ability.

In 2022, the Group had a total of 4,176 employees, of which 3,127 were male employees and 1,049 were
female employees, all of whom were employed on a full-time basis. 25% of the employees were under 30
years old, 69% were between 30 and 50 years old and 6% were over 50 years old. The Group’s main
production bases are concentrated in Shandong Province, where 86.6% of the employees are employed, and
the remaining 13.4% are concentrated in Liaoning Province, Jilin Province, Tianjin City and Shanghai City.

The employee turnover rate for the year by gender: 28.8% for male employees and 8.5% for female
employees; by age group: 14.7% for those under 30 years old, 18.8% for those between 30 and 50 years
old, and 3.8% for those over 50 years old; and by region: 29.8% in Shandong Province, 7.5% outside
Shandong Province.
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Employee structure

2022 2021

Number Percentage Number Percentage
Total number of employees 4,176 100% 4,170 100%
By gender
Male 3,127 75% 3,134 75%
Female 1,049 25% 1,036 25%
By age
Under 30 years old 1,044 25% 1,167 28%
30-50 years old 2,881 69% 2,710 65%
Over 50 years old 251 6% 293 7%
By region
Shandong Province 3,616 86.6% 3,586 86%
Outside Shandong Province 560 13.4% 584 14%
Employee turnover rate

2022 2021

Number Percentage Number Percentage
By gender
Male 1,203 28.8% 692 16.6%
Female 355 8.5% 163 3.9%
By age
Under 30 years old 614 14.7% 521 12.5%
30-50 years old 785 18.8% 300 7.2%
Over 50 years old 159 3.8% 34 0.8%
By region
Shandong Province 1,244 29.8% 817 19.6%
Outside Shandong Province 314 7.5% 38 0.9%
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B2. Health and Safety

Our Group regularly reviews the health and safety procedures for employees to safeguard their wellbeing. Our
employees are entitled to a free annual occupational health check-up. Our Group boosts the employees’
safety awareness with briefing, training, information and reminders. After induction, employees are required to
complete a safety education training, with a passing score in their assessments as the pre-requisite for
securing the positions. Our group conducts fire drills, evacuation and escape exercises on a regular basis in
order to enhance the employees’ safety awareness and their emergency response capacity.

The Group has taken up social insurance including work injury insurance for all employees in accordance with
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases and the
Regulations on Work Injury Insurance. Furthermore, relevant departments such as the safety department and
the security department are established to strictly implement the relevant safety regulations and codes
formulated by the Group, including Safety Accident Management System, Fire Safety Management System,
Hazardous Chemical Safety Management System, and Special Operator Management System.

Data on occupational safety 2022 2021 2020
Number of work-related fatalities 0 1 0
Lost days due to work injury 1,521 1,019 356

Annual Report 2022 China Sunshine Paper Holdings Company Limited

45



46

Environmental, Social and
Governance Report

During the reporting period, in the face of new challenges brought about by the repeated spread of the
Omicron virus, the Group and its subsidiaries responded positively by implementing more targeted pandemic
prevention and control measures and providing sufficient living and pandemic prevention materials. By fully and
strictly implementing various pandemic prevention requirements, the Group always prioritized the safety and
health of its employees. During the spread of Omicron, employees’ rights such as medical leave were
guaranteed, and the Company did not suffer any employee fatalities due to Omicron.

B3. Development and Training

The Group believes that talents are the cornerstone of corporate development and growth. All of our newly
recruited employees are required to attend an induction training so as to familiarize themselves with the
essence of our corporate culture, including core values, company motto and working attitude.

The Group continues to implement the talent development strategy. Adhering to the principle of “external
recruitment and internal cultivation”, with internal cultivation as the main, supplemented by external
recruitment, the Group integrates existing training resources, to carry out a number of education and teaching
activities in terms of professional knowledge, quality development, skill training, technology research and
development, business management, etc., to enhance the personal education and vocational skills of
employees. The Group also strengthens the cultivation of technical talents and skilled talents, stimulates the
innovative vitality and high-quality development of the Group, and promotes technological progress and
industrial upgrading and transformation, to achieve a win-win situation in the development of employees and
the Company.
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In order to support the realization of the talent strategy, the Group will strengthen its remuneration
management, and to be more specific, establish a competitive and motivating remuneration management
system, with the remuneration policy being tilted to key positions and core positions; establish a staff
performance management system to achieve the reform on performance management system, which will
highlight the evaluation of personal performance and personal contribution; establish and improve career
development channels for employees to create a platform for the development of employees; establish a
complete talent echelon system through systematic talent training. Based on different professions and levels,
the Company establishes a systematic and perfect training system to fully empower employees. The Group will
integrate its existing training resources and set up a “Sunshine Training School” to promote the improvement
of employees‘skills and abilities through training, and promote and guide employees to improve work efficiency
and work enthusiasm through systems such as remuneration, performance, and career development.

In terms of personal career development of employees, the Group offers three promotion channels, namely
management development channel, professional technology promotion channel, and craftsman promotion
development channel, which correspond to the three ways of management position promotion, professional
skills promotion, and high-quality performance promotion, to provide employees with a variety of personal
promotion development paths, and encourage the improvement and development of employees.

Sunshine Paper has tailored three promotion channels for each employee:
Management channel: Promotion through job positions
Technology channel: Promotion through professional skill enhancement

Craftsman channel: Promotion through high-quality job performance (all personnel who can conscientiously
and diligently perform their job duties with high quality and high standards in their positions)

Century Sunshine’s Job Grade Promotion Channels

Management Technology Craftsman
channel channel channel

Chairperson

Expert-level technician
General manager

Craftsman Level 7

o | Senior Technician
eput‘y general manager Associate senior technician
Assistant to general Secondary-level Craftsman Level 6

. manager professional and technical
Director, Qroup Center personnel Craftsman Level 5
Deputy director, Group Primary-level professional
Center and technical personnel Craftsman Level 4
Manager of second-level Junior secondary-level
dt.spartment.s professional and technical Craftsman Level 3
Senéor exicutlves personnel
xecutives P
o <unior primary-level Craftsman Level 2
° professional and technical
M|d-|§vel employees personnel
Junior employees Craftsman Level 1

To cultivate a healthy and upbeat value preference among employees and accumulate greater positive energy
for development, our Group organized a wide range of activities, such as employee skills competition,
pacesetter contest, IWD sports activities, tug-of-war competition for employees, young singer competition,
basketball league for employees, outdoor training activities, photography exhibitions and seminars for fresh
graduates, etc. The above activities enriched the cultural life of the employees and fostered corporate
solidarity.
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External training includes special training camp for young cadres, team leader training course and Sunshine
Future Elites Special Training Course (5 Yt & 5 #5 & #5 5| BE). During the year, a total of 143 participants from
the Group joined the external trainings with capital expenditure of approximately RMB849,000.

During the year, the Group organized a total of 3,439 internal trainings, and a total of 104,945 participants
joined such trainings, among which 430 were senior management; 1,832 were middle-level management. The
percentages of female employees trained and male employees trained were 100% and 100%, respectively,
while the proportions of senior management and middle management in the employees trained were 100%
and 100%, respectively. The Company ensured that each employee received equal access to the benefits of
our training programs.

In terms of training hours, the Group carried out 4,149 hours of training in total during the year, with average
training hours of 24 hours per employee, among which average training hours of male employees were 24
hours, average training hours of female employees were 24 hours; 134 hours were attended by senior
management; 134 hours were attended by middle-level management.

In terms of the types of training, the Group carried out a total of 31,795 of professional skills training; 31,424

participants joined safety training; 19,700 participants joined general management training; and 22,035
participants joined conceptual guidance and professional ethics training.
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In addition to on-site training, the Group carried out online course learning with the help of Sunshine Network
Academy, so that more employees can enjoy the Group’s training benefits. The number of Sunshine Network
Academy accounts in 2022 increased by 39.23% compared to 2021, with a login rate of 77.79%, enabling
each individual’s capabilities to be continuously enhanced.

The strategy of emphasizing talents has achieved fruitful results. In the 2022 Shandong Provincial Light and
Textile Industry Staff Innovation and Value Creation Competition (% & 8245 17 3 B T &l 5 81 % 5% 28), Century
Sunshine Paper Group was selected as one of the “All-staff Innovation Enterprise in the Light and Textile
Industry in Shandong Province (LU R & 84517 2 B 8l#71 1 %)”, and Wang Lixin Worker Model Craftsman
Innovation Studio (T 32 #7451 T IF &l %7 T {E=) was awarded the “Shandong Province Innovation Studio for
Model Workers and Craftsmen Talent in the Light and Textile Industry (IR & 847172 M TIE A A A ¥
THEE)"

B4. Labor Standards

The Group has strictly adhered to the requirements of Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China in terms
of employment management, and there was no child labour or forced labour in the operation of our Group
during the reporting period. The Group carried out recruitment exercises and employee management in strict
accordance with the relevant regulations. Each employee shall fill in a recruitment form for the collecting of
relevant data and information, which will be verified by our human resources department to avoid any
inaccurate information. By doing so, we are able to recruit suitable candidates in accordance with work
requirements and the applicants’ expectations.

During the year, the Group did not find anything which constituted a material breach of the aforesaid labour
standards and other relevant laws and regulations.
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Operation Management

B5. Supply Chain Management

The Group has established strict supplier access management system, status management system,
performance evaluation management system, procured material trial system, bidding management system, etc.
and corresponding online processes to supervise the management process. The Group also formulate an
elimination mechanism to achieve a virtuous circle of the supplier pool and create a healthy and fair supplier
cooperation atmosphere.

As our suppliers of raw and auxiliary materials come from the United States, Southeast Asia and China, the
Group adheres to the principles of optimal cost effectiveness, low carbon, green, and environmental protection
to exercise the quality control over suppliers. Suppliers are required to provide detailed and comprehensive
company basic information, relevant qualifications, main raw materials and sources, legality of employment,
quality certification system, warehousing and logistics, production and manufacturing related information, sales,
product quality management, ecological environment, supporting services, etc., all of which are required to
meet the Group’s production requirements, quality requirements and stable supply. Selection of the best
suppliers is based on on-site evaluation, market ranking, supply level of the same industry, and others. The
Group will also strengthen the long-term strategic and sustainable cooperation between the two parties by
means of supplier performance evaluation, supplier interview mechanism, regular safety training, and
informatization training.

Our supplier access process: for the admission of new suppliers in different categories, they are required to fill
in basic information forms and admission data lists, and our procurement management center then conducts a
qualification review for admission based on different dimensions. For instance, to protect the legitimate rights
and interests and safety interests of workers during construction activities, it is necessary to provide
performance of similar projects in the past three years, qualification certificate of the construction enterprise,
safety certificate of the main person in charge, safety production permits, safety agreements, special operation
certificates, on-site personnel safety training records, construction personnel insurance payment materials,
construction emergency plans, identification of hazardous sources, on-site hazard warning signs and safety
disclosure. Admission of new materials is based on the principles of increasing efficiency at lower costs,
reducing the labor intensity of operators, and improving safety to promote the trial of materials.

Our supplier inspection and evaluation process: prior to trial of materials, an evaluation team, which is
comprised of members from the procurement management center, the user department, or the functional
department, shall conduct on-site evaluation of the comprehensive situation of enterprises in strict compliance
with the supplier inspection management system for production, project, trade, agent, coal, on-site
construction and installation suppliers. The procurement management center and functional department or user
department shall complete the factory inspection and evaluation report on such suppliers and score it, before
the procurement management center submits the supplier evaluation process and classifies the supplier based
on the evaluation results. Suppliers with a score below 60 are considered unqualified, 60-70 points are
qualified suppliers, 70-85 points are good suppliers, and suppliers with a score of 85 or above are excellent.
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Our supplier registration management process: the qualified suppliers are required to register as FIORI
suppliers, and file registration online by clicking the access link of the Group’s official website. After
information filled in the form is submitted, the procurement management center will review the qualifications,
upon completion of which, it will enter the supplier’'s on-site evaluation and certification process. The
evaluation report is submitted according to the original inspection record and submitted for approval. For those
exempt from on-site evaluation, they are required to submit applications in writing and the on-site
evaluation-free access process, in which case the supplier’s unique supplier code will be generated in the SAP
system.

In 2022, 165 new suppliers were admitted, 102 of which were evaluated on site. In 2022, we cooperated with
856 suppliers, the majority of which are domestic suppliers and account for approximately 98% of the total
suppliers, including 42% in Shandong, approximately 34% in Jiangsu, Zhejiang and Shanghai, approximately
7% in the three northeastern provinces, 3% in Beijing and Tianjin, and approximately 12% in the remaining
regions. There are 20 foreign suppliers in Canada, Chile, Thailand, the United States, Sweden, etc.,
representing approximately 2% of the total number of suppliers.

Our supplier performance evaluation process: the supplier’'s performance during the cooperation period will be
subject to evaluation based on the performance evaluation system, including price levels, price reductions,
payment terms, delivery performance, consignment support, return rate, timely handling of quality issues,
business evaluation, technical evaluation, comprehensive strength, etc., to determine whether the supplier has
provided relevant supporting services. Based on the evaluation and comparison of scores, outstanding
suppliers will be retained and consolidated, and well-known brands and long-term suppliers with no quality
problems are exempted from inspection policies, while those with poor performance will be phased out.
Furthermore, our suppliers are also subject to hierarchical management. The procurement management center
is responsible for data collection and collation, the assessment results of which will be communicated to the
suppliers in a timely manner, and serve as the basis for formulating supplier development and elimination
plans.

Our Group supports green procurement and not only focuses on the quality of the supplier’s products but also
uses environmental and social standards to screen suppliers, including environmental certification,
environmental protection, resource consumption, hazardous materials, low-carbon and environmental
protection, labour rights, etc. During the cooperation, we require all suppliers not to use forced labour or
employ child labour, and to protect biodiversity during the production process. We conduct regular inspections
of suppliers by scoring the assessment based on the corresponding environmental and social requirements to
ensure that their production and operations comply with our Company’s requirements for labour rights,
environment, health and safety. For unqualified suppliers, our cooperation will be terminated. Meanwhile, the
Group is committed to establishing a green supply chain by taking into consideration a number of
environmental factors in various processes, including production, logistics, and sales. Local suppliers or those
with closer geographical proximity are given priority to reduce carbon footprint. Certain raw materials and the
majority of the raw paper are transported by the Group’s subsidiaries, as they are able to comprehensively
monitor the logistics status to ensure efficient and low-carbon transportation.
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B6  Product Responsibility

The products of the Group are subject to the regulation by the Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic
of China and other laws, regulations and standards on product safety and quality, which require enterprises to
bear product quality responsibilities and ensure that products meet quality and safety standards. The Group
insists on the principle of quality first and customer-oriented focus and strives to provide quality products and
services to create value for customers and maintain good relationship with customers. The Group has
maintained good after-sales service since the beginning of its business to fulfill the Group’s commitment to the
customers in terms of the quality, safety and security of its products and to satisfy customers’ needs to the
maximum extent.

The Group has obtained 1ISO9001 quality management system certification and Forest Stewardship Council
(FSC) certification, which reflects the Group’s pursuit of product quality and its commitment to maintaining
sustainable management of forests. There were no products that must be recalled for health and safety
reasons in 2022. The Group has always adhered to the principles of green and low-carbon production and
operation. In 2022, the Company was awarded the title of “Low-carbon Pioneer” by Yili Group. Among the
seven award-winning suppliers, our Group was the only paper-making enterprise.

=

The Company has established a specialised department — Quality Control Department to formulate testing
items, testing standards and testing frequency for semi-finished and finished paper. Each workshop has a
quality control room equipped with a full set of testing equipment for on-site product quality tracking and
control and instant testing for products in production workshop to ensure timely and effective control of
product quality. The testing data is input into the MES system, to form a quality management network
covering the Company, which not only achieve effective communication with production, but also guaranteeing
the timeliness and smoothness of quality information and stable product quality. It is deeply recognized by
customers.
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During the reporting period, the Group received a total of 195 complaints regarding our products and
services. Following the investigations, the majority were related to product quality. The complaint rate for
product quality was approximately 0.016% (the percentage of claims for compensation over sales). The Group
has set up 34 sales offices nationwide, and when we receive complaints from customers, our sales staff will
visit the customers immediately to gain an understanding of such situation and deliver the collected
information to the Company. One of the important job of our after-sales specialists is to deal with quality
issues raised by customers. The Company has established the OA system quality issue processing process,
and the after-sales specialist will track and supervise the timely completion of OA quality issue processing
process. The quality department and the production workshop have established a PDCA closed-loop
processing system for quality issues to prevent the recurrence of problems.

The Group will exercise more rigorous control over all aspects of the production process, with the target
assessment system in place. Continuous improvement is based on the “PDCA” cycle model. Our quality
management system fully involves all staff. For the production process, strict control is exercised over each
process that easily affects product quality, and comprehensive quality management is actively enforced.

The product recall process of the Group: customer return request—on-site investigation by sales
executives—analysis and confirmation by quality and technical personnel—confirmation by production
manager—confirmation by general manager—completion of oa return process—return of goods—judgement
and treatment decision on the return by quality supervisor.

Subject to our main business requirements, the Group will in the first instance engage professional agencies to
submit applications for intellectual property rights that may have a significant impact on the Company,
including trademark rights and patent rights, so as to protect the Group’s interests to the fullest extent. In
collaboration with other entities or individuals, we are required to establish detailed provisions on the
ownership, scope of use, duration, and distribution of subsequent research and development results of the
intellectual property rights involved, and enter into relevant legal instruments. Upon licensing the intellectual
property rights, our technical department will keep abreast of our competitors’ products and ensure effective
analysis over patent infringements in order to defend our patents rights and carry out effective patent
strategies. In case of any infringement, our legal department will take responsibility for negotiating or initiating
litigation to claim compensation, and end infringements.
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The Group has established a policy on the proper protection of customer data and privacy. The Department of
Process and Information Technology has formulated a comprehensive protection policy for all data of the
Group, in an attempt to provide sufficient protection and confidentiality measures for the all corporate data and
proprietary information as well as to safeguard the rights of employees, customers and business partners.
Access permissions are clearly defined to restrict any information retrieval from the system or virtual data
room. We conduct regular data backup to ensure that the system data can be effectively restored and run
normally in the event of emergencies such as natural disasters or power outages.

B7. Anti-corruption

Our Group guarantees that all its business is free from improper influence. Directors and employees shall
closely observe our code of conduct and the requirements of anti-corruption regulations of the Group and
effective reporting channels have been established to prevent potential bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. The code of conduct of our Group expressly states that:

— Directors and employees should be integral and committed to their responsibilities and are prohibited to
acquire improper benefits with their authority and power.

— Employees are prohibited from participating in income generating activities in private, taking up part-time
positions with remunerations from other economic entities and engaging in paid agency activities.
Registration of or investment in companies competing with the Company is prohibited.

— Employees should observe the requirements of the management and use of public property and are
prohibited from using public resources to satisfy private needs.

— Directors and employees shall be committed to frugality and avoid extravagance, overspending,
squandering public fund and wastefulness.

— A committee primarily responsible for anti-corruption is established to examine, oversee and assess the
system formulation and implementation.

- Establish effective anonymous reporting channels such as QR codes, emails, contact numbers, and
mailboxes so that relevant appeals can be effectively addressed.

— In order to emphasise the Group’s integrity policies and allow employees to clearly understand the
Company’s anti-corruption policy and the importance of integrity, the human resources center and the
corporate culture center regularly provide anti-corruption trainings to the management and employees,
and new comers are required to receive integrity education and training.

—  Suppliers with which the Group does business are required to sign an “Anti-Corruption Agreement” by
promising no bribery will be conducted and integrity will be upheld together with the Group, and
violators shall bear the losses and all legal consequences of the Group. The Group also encourages
cooperation partners to provide their anti-corruption policies for our reference to ensure that both parties
engage in cooperation based on the principles of fairness, openness and justice.
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The Group strictly complies with the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Anti-Unfair Competition, the
Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China, and other laws and regulations and regulatory documents
related to commercial bribery.

In addition, the Group is committed to strengthening compliance training to combat and prevent any
corruption. During the reporting period, the employees of the Group, especially those in departments with
frequent economic activities, participated in anti-corruption related training, covering national laws and
regulations, the Company’s internal “Several Regulations on Anti-corruption (& B % /8 B #E T R E)”,
anti-corruption cases and the latest developments and future trends. The directors of the Group also regularly
attend relevant meetings on anti-corruption training to strengthen their moral bottom line from the depths of
their thinking.

During the year, the Group did not find anything which constituted a breach of the aforesaid and other local
laws and regulations related to anti-corruption or anti-money laundering.

B8. Community Investment

With its continuous growth and development in scale, the Group has been actively involved in serving the
community and fulfilling its social responsibilities, in addition to making contribution to fiscal revenues, driving
surrounding employment and promoting economic development. Our Group has entered into close cooperation
agreements with various institutions to provide students with opportunities of visits and internship as well as
offer promising career and development opportunities to them. In 2022, we collaborated with Changle County
Technician College to launch a new modern apprenticeship program called “Sunshine Class”. After
systematically studying career development planning, company management systems, corporate culture, fire
safety and other related knowledge, the students from such program will be assigned to front-line positions for
internships. In 2022, the expense from grants awarded was approximately RMB160,000, as part of our effort
to tailor a talent development training system for each student, provide fertile soil for their development, and
help them grow and mature as soon as possible.

| S |
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In response to the COVID-19 outbreak, the Group established a pandemic control team at the beginning of the
outbreak, which implemented a number of pandemic control mechanisms and safety measures to ensure the
safety of employees in internal pandemic control. At the same time, the Group actively cooperated with
relevant government departments in the pandemic control. In 2022, the Group assisted in installing disinfection
and sterilization facilities at the junctions of Qingyin Expressway and Changle Expressway, as well as Weiri
Expressway South Road Junction, and purchased water pumps, pipes, cables, control boxes. In addition,
disinfectants worth approximately RMB30,000 were provided, and over 30 deliveries were made, all of the
work amounted to a total of approximately 180 hours. The Group also spent over RMB270,000 on masks,
hazmat suits, food and beverage delivers, and other supplies to ensure the safety of highway patrol officers
and truck drivers stranded on the highways due to the pandemic.
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MEMBERS

The audit committee of our Company consists of the three independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms.
Shan Xueyan, Mr. Wang Zefeng and Ms. Jiao Jie, with Ms. Shan Xueyan sitting as the chairlady of the audit
committee. Biographical details of the current members are set out in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management”.

TERMS OF REFERENCE

Based on the terms of reference of the audit committee as at 31 December 2022, members of the committee
shall, among other things, oversee our Group’s relationship with its external auditor, review the preliminary
results, interim results and annual financial statements, review the scope, extent and effectiveness of our
Group’s internal audit functions and risk management, and, where necessary, commission independent
investigations by legal advisers or other professionals.

MEETINGS

Two audit committee meetings were held during FY2022 and all members at the relevant time have attended
such meetings.

The following is a summary of the tasks completed by the audit committee during FY2022 and up to the date
of this report:

° reviewed the consolidated financial statements for FY2021;

° reviewed the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and the interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2022;

o reviewed the external auditor’s audit plan, letter of representation and audit engagement letter for FY2022;

° considered and approved the external audit fees for FY2022;
° reviewed our Company’s internal control and risk management systems; and
° reviewed the “Connected Transactions” set out on pages 74 to 75 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL REPORTS

The audit committee reviewed and considered the reports and statements of the management to ensure that
the consolidated financial statements of our Group have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules. The committee also met with the external
auditor of our Company, Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited, to consider the scope and results of their
independent audit in respect of the consolidated financial statements.
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REVIEW OF INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

The audit committee assisted our Board to perform its duties to maintain effective risk management and
internal control systems for our Group. The audit committee reviewed our Group’s procedure and workflow for
environmental and risk assessment and its initiatives for business risks management and control.

RE-APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The audit committee recommended to our Board that, subject to Shareholders’ approval at the AGM, Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited be re-appointed as our Company’s external auditor for the year ending 31
December 2023.

For FY2022, the fee paid or payable to the external auditor of our Company in respect of the audit services
and non-audit services provided amounted to approximately RMB2.1 million and RMBO0.3 million, respectively.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board is responsible for and has general powers over the management and conduct of our Group’s
business. Our Board consists of nine Directors including five executive Directors, one non-executive Director
and three independent non-executive Directors. Our Company has entered into service contracts with each of
our executive Directors. The table below shows certain information in respect of the members of the Board:

Name Position in our Group

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Dongxing Chairman of our Board, a member of the remuneration
committee and a member of the nomination committee

Mr. Shi Weixin Vice chairman of our Board

Mr. Wang Changhai General manager of our Group

Mr. Zhang Zengguo Deputy general manager of our Group

Mr. Ci Xiaolei Deputy general manager of our Group

Non-executive Director
Ms. Wu Rong

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Shan Xueyan Chairlady of the audit committee and a member of the
remuneration committee

Mr. Wang Zefeng Chairman of the remuneration committee, a member of the
audit committee and a member of the nomination
committee

Ms. Jiao Jie Chairlady of the nomination committee and a member of

the audit committee

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Dongxing, aged 60, is an executive Director and the chairman of our Board. Mr. Wang was
appointed as a Director on 22 August 2007. Mr. Wang is also a member of the remuneration committee and
a member of the nomination committee of our Board. With over 20 years of experience in the paper
manufacturing industry, Mr. Wang is responsible for the overall management and strategy of our Group. Mr.
Wang has been with our Group since the establishment of Changle Century Sunshine Paper Industry Co., Ltd.
(“Changle Sunshine”) in 2000 and was previously the general manager of Century Sunshine. Mr. Wang is also
a director of China Sunshine Paper Investments Limited (“China Sunshine”) and China Sunrise Paper Holdings
Limited (“China Sunrise”), controlling shareholders of our Company. He graduated from LB & T 3 £ %
(Shandong Institute of Light Industry) with a Bachelor of Engineering degree in 1983, with a major in pulp and
paper making. He served as a director and deputy general manager of Shandong Chenming Paper Holdings
Limited (“Shandong Chenming”), a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 1812), which was mainly engaged in the business of production of
machine-made paper, paper plate, paper materials and paper-making related machineries from 1985 to 1999.
He was mainly responsible for the daily operation and management in Shandong Chenming. He served as a
factory manager of Shandong Chenming Paper Industry Group Qihe Cardboard Co., Ltd (“Qihe Cardboard”)
from 1995 to 1996. During his tenure in office in Qihe Cardboard, Mr. Wang obtained the Qihe County’s
Economic Special Achievement Golden award. He also served as a factory manager of Shandong Chenming
No. 2 Factory from 1997 to 1998, and was the general manager of Wuhan Shuailun Paper Industry Co., Ltd.
from 1999 to 2000.
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Mr. Shi Weixin, aged 66, is an executive Director and the vice chairman of our Board. Mr. Shi was appointed
as a Director on 19 November 2007. With over 20 years of experience in electrical automation control, Mr. Shi
is responsible for the management of the automation system. Mr. Shi has been with our Group since the
establishment of Changle Sunshine in 2000. Mr. Shi is also a director of China Sunshine and China Sunrise,
controlling shareholders of our Company. He graduated from China Textile University in 1986, with a major in
industrial electrical automation. Mr. Shi used to be a design director of Shanghai Paper Manufacturing
Machinery General Factory from 1981 to 1992 and was responsible for the design of the automation control
system for paper-making equipments. During 1984 to 1992, he has been named as an “Excellent Technician”
twice. In 1993, Mr. Shi founded Shanghai Paper Mechanical Electric Control Technology Institute (“Shanghai
Institute”), and has been its chairman and general manager since 1993. Mr. Shi was primarily responsible for
management and operation in Shanghai Institute. He was also a member of the Shanghai Hongkou District
Committee of Political Consultative Conference, a member of the executive committee of Shanghai Hongkou
Federation of Industry and Commerce and a director of Hongkou Association of Entrepreneurs Association. Mr.
Shi won the “Shanghai City Technological Achievement” award in 2000.

Mr. Wang Changhai, aged 52, is an executive Director and the general manager of our Group. He has been
appointed as a Director on 29 February 2016. Mr. Wang joined our Group in 2001 and he has about 20 years
of experience in the paper products industry and is very familiar with the operations of the Group. Mr. Wang
is currently a General Manager of the Group and is responsible for the overall management of the Group. He
had been a manager and an assistant manager of the Group prior to the promotion to the deputy general
manager of domestic sales in 2003.

Mr. Zhang Zengguo, aged 58, is an executive Director and was appointed as a Director on 19 November
2007. Mr. Zhang joined our Group in 2001. He is also the director of the technical department, assistant
general manager and deputy general manager of Changle Sunshine since 2001. Further, Mr. Zhang is a
director of China Sunshine and China Sunrise, controlling shareholders of our Company. He graduated from
the Shandong Institute of Light Industry in 1988, with a major in pulp and paper manufacturing. Mr. Zhang
was the department director and engineer of Jinguang Paper Mill from 1993 to 2000. During his tenure in
office in Jinguang Paper Mill, Mr. Zhang was primarily responsible for the design, construction and test run of
projects.

Mr. Ci Xiaolei, aged 47, is an executive Director and the deputy general manager of the Group and is
responsible for the operation of a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Ci graduated from Anhui University of
Technology and Science with a bachelor of engineering in July 1998 and joined the Group in March 2003. Mr.
Ci has been the project manager, deputy general engineer and general engineer and general manager of the
Group. Mr. Ci previously served as an executive Director of the Company from 24 May 2012 to 29 February
2016. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ci worked at Shandong Chenming Paper Industry Group Co., Ltd and
was responsible for equipment management and maintenance.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Wu Rong, aged 59, is a non-executive Director of our Group. Ms. Wu was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 15 April 2019. Ms Wu has more than 20 years experience in financial management. She is the
chairman of board of supervisors in Shandong Century Sunshine Paper Co. Ltd, a subsidiary of the Group.
She is also the chief financial officer of Shanghai SIED Electric Drive Co., Ltd,. Ms. Wu graduated from
Shanghai University in July 1987, majoring in electric automation, and graduated from China Central Radio and
Television University in July 2005, majoring in finance. Between August 1987 and December 1992, Ms. Wu
served as a designer in the Research Institute of Shanghai Papermaking Machinery General Factory, and then
joined Shanghai SIED Electric Drive Co., Ltd. (former Shanghai Paper Mechanical Electric Control Technology
Institute) in January 1993, where she held the roles of administrative director and chief financial officer. Ms.
Wu received the certificate of accounting professional in China in May 2002.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Zefeng, aged 62, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Wang joined our Group in 2007
and was appointed as a Director on 19 November 2007. Mr. Wang is also the chairman of the remuneration
committee, a member of the audit committee and a member of the nomination committee of our Board. Mr.
Wang graduated from Shandong Institute of Light Industry in 1982 with a Bachelor’s degree in industrial art of
pulp and paper. He is currently Vice President of China Paper Association. He previously served as the
principal of Shandong Papermaking Industry Research and Design Institute and the chairman of Shangdong
Paper Manufacturing Industry Association, the deputy general manager, chief engineer and senior engineer of
Shandong Paper Industry Group.

Ms. Jiao Jie, aged 42, is an independent non-executive Director. Ms. Jiao first joined our Group in 2007 and
subsequently left our Group in 2010. The last position held by Ms. Jiao was as a joint company secretary of
our Company and the special assistant to the chairman of our Board. Ms. Jiao rejoined our Group in January
2014 and was appointed as a Director on 27 January 2014. Ms. Jiao is currently the chief financial officer of
Play for Dream, Inc. From June 2014 to December 2018, she was the chief financial officer of iClick
Interactive Asia Group Limited, a company listed on Nasdaqg (stock code: ICLK) and was responsible for
corporate finance and internal control. Prior to that, she was joint company secretary and general legal
counsel of ArtGo Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (stock code: 3313) from March 2012 to May 2014. From January 2010 to February 2012, Ms. Jiao
was the chief legal counsel and head of investor relations of SouFun Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the New York Stock Exchange (stock code: SFUN). Ms. Jiao was a legal assistant of Jingtian & Gongcheng
from 2004 to 2007. Ms. Jiao graduated from the Law School and China Center for Economic Research at
Peking University with bachelor’'s degrees in law and economics in July 2003 and obtained a degree of
magister juris from University of Oxford in July 2005. Ms. Jiao obtained the certificate of Legal Profession
Qualification in March 2010. She also obtained Chartered Financial Analyst qualification in September 2014.
Ms. Jiao was appointed as an independent non-executive director of TradeGo FinTech Limited (stock code:
8017), a company listed on the Stock Exchange since September 2018. From June 2019 to May 2022, she
was appointed as independent director of China Index Holdings Limited, a company listed on Nasdaq (stock
code: CIH). Ms. Jiao joined the board of MOG Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange(stock code: 1942) as an independent non-executive director since April 2020. She was appointed as
independent director of Quhuo Limited, a company listed on Nasdaqg (stock code: QH) since July 2020.

Ms. Shan Xueyan, aged 45, is an independent non-executive Director. Ms. Shan joined our Group in 2016
and was appointed as a Director on 15 December 2016. Ms. Shan is also the chairlady of the audit
committee and a member of the remuneration committee. Ms. Shan has over 15 years of experience in
accounting and auditing. Currently, Ms. Shan is the audit supervisor of Shouguang Shengcheng Certified
Public Accountants (“Shouguang Shengcheng”) (£ E# AR & E 2 &R0 =7 F7), which she joined in July
2001. At Shouguang Shengcheng, Ms. Shan is mainly responsible for auditing sizeable enterprises and
government projects, and providing finance and tax consultancy services to enterprises in China. Ms. Shan
graduated with a Bachelor of Engineering degree from the Tsingtao Polytechnic University in July 2001. She is
a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has been qualified as a senior
accountant since 2011.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Wenzheng, aged 51, is the deputy general manager of our Group and is responsible for the
management of the accounting and finance of our Company’s subsidiaries in China. Mr. Liu joined the Group
in February 2010. Mr. Liu graduated from Shandong Administration Institute with a Bachelor’s degree in
accountancy in 1993. Prior to joining our Group, he was the chief financial controller of Shandong Haoxin
Group. He was a supervisor of Shandong Chenming. Mr. Liu is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

Mr. Zhang Hongming, aged 51, is the deputy general manager of our Group and is responsible for the
management of packing segment operation of our Group. He was previously responsible for the domestic
sales and production management of our Group. Mr. Zhang joined our Group in 2001.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael, aged 46, is the company secretary of our Company. Mr. Chan joined our
Group in September 2013 and was appointed as a company secretary of our Company on 26 September
2013. He has more than ten years of experience in the areas of audit, financial management, corporate
secretarial management and corporate governance. He graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with an honour bachelor’s degree in accountancy. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
currently a director of MCI CPA Limited, a certified public accountant firm in Hong Kong. He is currently
serving as independent non-executive directors for four companies whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange, namely China Sandi Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 910), StarGlory Holdings Company Limited
(Stock Code: 8213) and Beijing Media Corporation Ltd. (Stock Code: 1000). He also acts as a company
secretary of another company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, namely
Northeast Electric Development Company Limited (Stock Code: 0042) since 2012.

He served as the independent non-executive directors of Prosper One International Holdings Company Limited
(Stock Code: 1470) from September 2017 to December 2018, Champion Alliance International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1629) from November 2018 to January 2020 and SoftMedx Healthcare Limited (Stock
Code: 648, formerly named as China Wah Yan Healthcare Limited) from July 2014 to May 2022, the shares
are listed on the Main Bord of the Stock Exchange.
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We, the Directors, present the annual report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of our
Group for FY2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Our Group is principally engaged in the production and sale of paper products.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

A business review and an analysis on the financial key performance indicators are set out in the section
headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 8 to 11, and the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 14 to 19.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The consolidated results of our Group for FY2022 are set out in the consolidated financial statements on page
83.

DIVIDEND

The Board do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for FY2022.

DIVIDEND POLICY
The Board considers sustainable returns to shareholders to be one of the main objectives of the Company.
Stable dividend payment to shareholders is the primary objective of the Company.

Under the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of the Company, all of the
shareholders have equal rights to dividends and distributions. The Board determines the interim dividend and
recommends the final dividend which requires the approval of shareholders. In addition to cash, dividends may
be distributed in the form of shares. Any distribution of shares also requires the approval of shareholders.

Retained profits can be used to achieve growth in corporate value. The Board has been making effective use
of retained profits to strengthen the operating base and the development of businesses. According to the
dividend policy adopted by the Company on 1 January 2019, the Board takes into account the various factors
when considering the declaration and payment of dividends: financial results; cash flow situation; availability of
distributable profits; capital requirements and expenditure plans; business status and strategies; future
operations and earnings; development plans; interests of shareholders as a whole; any restrictions on
declaration and/or payment of dividends; and any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

In practice, the Company will not declare any dividend(s) where: (1) there are reasonable grounds for believing
that the Company is or would be, after a dividend payment, unable to pay its liabilities or discharge its
obligations as and when they become due; (2) pursuant to dividend decision date, the Company is insolvent or
bankrupt or where, as a result of paying dividends, the Company would be rendered insolvent or bankrupt; or
(3) there is any other case set forth by any law.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of our Company will be closed from 24 May 2023 to 31 May 2023, both days
inclusive, for the purpose of determining entitlement to attend the annual general meeting to be held on 31
May 20283 (the “AGM”), during which no transfer of shares of our Company will be registered. The record date
for entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM is 31 May 2023. In order to qualify for attending and voting at
the AGM, shareholders must ensure that all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with our Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Center, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, no later than 4:30 pm on 23 May 2023.

Notice of the AGM will be published on our website at www.sunshinepaper.com.cn and on the website of the
Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk, and dispatched to the shareholders in due course.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The following principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company are in addition to those set out in notes 41
and 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business risk

Downturn pressure on China’s economy and price competition from other peers are the crucial elements of
business risk. These two negative factors result in the uncertainties of sales and profit margin performances of
our Group. The Board will regularly review overall management and implement appropriate strategies to
minimize risks exposure.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

Employees are one of the most important assets of our Group and their performances affect the sustainability
of our Group’s business. Our Group emphasizes the importance of attracting skilled and experienced talents
by offering competitive remuneration packages, safe and pleasant working environment, and career
development.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Over the years, our Group has been fully committed to environmental protection. We are committed to
preserving and protecting the environment in every aspect of our operation by implementing various measures
and controls, including periodic meetings to review environmental issues in our plants and updated
environmental laws and regulations.

Our Group will continue to allocate resources to ensure high environmental standards are persistently met in

the key areas including production process, water and electricity consumption, waste water treatment and
emission control.
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RESERVES
Details of the change in reserves of our Group for FY2022 are set out in the consolidated financial statements
on page 86.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserve available for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie,
representing the retained earnings, amounted to approximately RMB171.6 million.

DONATIONS
During FY2022, our Group had no donation for charitable purpose (2021: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, AND LAND USE RIGHTS

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment, and land use rights of our Group during
FY2022 are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of our Company during FY2022 are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association of our Company and there was no
restriction against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige our Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets and liabilities of our Group for the last five financial
years is set out on page 184.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of our Company are set out in note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of the bank borrowings of our Group are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

During FY2022, the Company repurchased a total of 1,686,000 shares of HK$0.1 per share through the Stock
Exchange at an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$3,602,620. All of the shares repurchased were
cancelled on 1 March 2023.
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Details of shares repurchased during FY2022 are set out as follows:

No. of Aggregate

shares Highest price Lowest price consideration

Date of repurchase Repurchased per share per share paid
(HK$) (HK$) (HKS)

29 December 2022 986,000 2.14 2.10 2,090,480
30 December 2022 700,000 217 2.14 1,512,140
1,686,000 3,602,620

The Board believes that repurchases of shares are in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders
and that such repurchases of shares would lead to an enhancement of the earnings per share of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities during FY2022.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during FY2022 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Dongxing (Chairman of our Board)

Mr. Shi Weixin (Vice chairman of our Board)

Mr. Wang Changhai (General manager of our Group)

Mr. Zhang Zengguo (Deputy general manager of our Group)
Mr. Ci Xiaolei (Deputy general manager of our Group)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Wu Rong

Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. Shan Xueyan

Mr. Wang Zefeng

Ms. Jiao Jie

In accordance with the articles of association of our Company, one third (or if their number is not a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one third) in number of our Directors shall retire from office by
rotation at each annual general meeting of our Company and provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three years. The retiring Directors are eligible to
offer themselves for re-election at such annual general meeting. Pursuant to Article 87 of the Articles, Mr. Shi
Weixin, Mr. Wang Changhai and Mr. Ci Xiaolei shall retire from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 31 May 2023 (the “AGM”) and being eligible for re-election, will offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM.
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Mr. Wang Zefeng and Ms. Jiao Jie has been serving as an independent non-executive Director for more than
nine years since November 2007 and January 2014. Pursuant to code provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, (a)
serving more than nine years could be relevant to the determination of a non-executive director’'s
independence; and (b) if an independent non-executive director serves more than nine years, his further
appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the shareholders of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. Wang Zefeng and Ms. Jiao Jie will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by
way of separate resolutions to be approved by the shareholders of the Company in the AGM.

Our Company has received from each of them independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
his/her independence during FY2022 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and our Board considers that
all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Directors’ service contracts

Each of Mr. Wang Dongxing, Mr. Shi Weixin and Mr. Zhang Zengguo has entered into a service contract
dated 19 November 2022 with our Company for a term of three years commencing on 19 November 2022
and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either
party on the other, or in accordance with the terms of the service contract.

Mr. Wang Changhai has signed a service contract dated 28 February 2022 with our Company for a term of
three years commencing on 28 February 2022 and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other, or in accordance with the terms of the
service contract.

Mr. Ci Xiaolei has signed a service contract dated 15 April 2022 with our Company for a term of three years
commencing on 15 April 2022 and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other, or in accordance with the terms of the service contract.

The annual salary and bonus of each executive Director shall be determined by our Board and subject to the
annual review by the remuneration committee of our Company.

Ms. Wu Rong has signed a letter of appointment dated 15 April 2022 with our Company to act as a non-
executive Director for a period of three years, commencing on 15 April 2022, unless terminated in accordance
with the terms and conditions specified in such letter.

Mr. Wang Zefeng has signed a letter of appointment dated 12 December 2022 with our Company under which
he has agreed to act as an independent non-executive Director for a period of three years, commencing on
12 December 2019, unless terminated in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in such letter.

Ms. Jiao Jie has signed a letter of appointment dated 27 January 2023 with our Company under which she
has agreed to act as an independent non-executive Director for a period of three years, commencing on 27
January 2023, unless terminated in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in such letter.

Ms. Shan Xueyan has signed a letter of appointment dated 15 December 2022 with our Company under which
she has agreed to act as an independent non-executive Director for a period of three years, commencing on

15 December 2022, unless terminated in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in such letter.

Details of directors’ emolument for each of our Directors for FY2022 are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Except as disclosed above, none of our Directors has a service contract or a letter of appointment with our
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director is or was materially interested, either
directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OR ANY OF ITS SUBSIDIARIES’ INTERESTS
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

During FY2022, there were no any contract of significance between the Company, or any of its subsidiary
companies, and a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries; and no contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

During the year of 2022, none of the Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company or their respective
associates had engaged in any business which competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group or has any conflict of interests with the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed for FY2022 and up to the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF OUR COMPANY
As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive of our
Company in the shares of our Company (the “Shares”), underlying shares and debentures of our Company and
its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”))
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to our
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code:

(a) Long positions in our Company:

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest shares shareholding
Mr. Wang Dongxing Interest of a party to an agreement to 321,687,052 31.51%
acquire interest in our Company!"
Beneficial owner 18,425,500 1.8%
Interest of a party to an agreement to 3,840,000 0.38%
acquire interests in our Company apart
from such agreement®
Mr. Shi Weixin Interest of a party to an agreement to 321,687,052 31.51%
acquire interest in our Company!"
Interest of a party to an agreement to 22,265,500 2.18%
acquire interests in our Company apart
from such agreement®
Mr. Zhang Zengguo Interest of a party to an agreement to 321,687,052 31.51%
acquire interest in our Company!"
Interest of a party to an agreement to 22,265,500 2.18%
acquire interests in our Company apart
from such agreement®
Mr. Wang Changhai  Interest of a party to an agreement to 321,687,052 31.51%
acquire interests in our Company!"
Beneficial owner 3,840,000 0.38%
Interest of a party to an agreement to 18,425,500 1.8%
acquire interests in our Company apart
from such agreement®
Mr. Ci Xiaolei Beneficial owner 929,000 0.09%
Ms. Wu Rong Interest of a party to an agreement to 321,687,052 31.51%
acquire interest in our Company!"
Interest of a party to an agreement to 22,265,500 2.18%

acquire interests in our Company apart
from such agreement®
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Notes:

1. A group of 17 individuals comprising Mr. Chen Xiaojun, Mr. Guo Jianlin, Mr. Li Zhongzhu, Mr. Lu Yujie, Mr. Ma Aiping, Mr. Sang
Zigian, Mr. Shi Weixin, Mr. Sun Qingtao, Mr. Wang Changhai, Mr. Wang Dongxing, Mr. Wang Feng, Mr. Wang Yilong, Mr.
Wang Yongaing, Ms. Wu Rong, Mr. Zhang Zengguo, Mr. Zheng Fasheng and Mr. Zuo Xiwei (the “Controlling Shareholders
Group”) entered into an agreement on 16 June 2006 and as amended by a supplemental agreement on 19 November 2007
(the “Concert Parties Agreement”), pursuant to which each of the members of the Controlling Shareholders Group has
confirmed that, among other things, since he or she became interested in and possessed voting rights in China Sunshine,
China Sunrise and any members of our Group (with China Sunshine and China Sunrise, collectively, the “Target Entities”) and
participated in the management of the business of the Target Entities, each of them has been actively cooperating with each
other and has been acting in concert (for the purpose of the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers (the “Takeovers
Code”)), with an aim to achieve consensus and concerted action on major affairs relating to the business of the Target Entities.
In addition, each of the members of the Controlling Shareholders Group has also agreed to keep the other members informed
of their direct or indirect interest in the Target Entities or changes to such interest, so as to ensure due and prompt
compliance of all applicable laws and